AGENDA

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Monday, August 19, 2024 - 5:00 PM
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

. Call Public Meeting to Order

Il. Executive Session

The City of Rockwall City Council will recess into executive session to discuss the following matter as
authorized by chapter 551 of the Texas government code:

1. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property in the vicinity of FM 552
& John King Blvd. and in the vicinity of Caruth Lane to the North Texas Municipal Water
District pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation
with Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding process associated with possible City Charter amendments and related
legal advice, pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

3. Discussion regarding possible land lease agreement for a cellular communication tower on
real property owned by the City of Rockwall in the vicinity of Yellowjacket Lane, pursuant to
Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives,
pursuant to §Section 551.087 (Economic Development)

5. Discussion regarding City of Rockwall vs. Richard Brooks & Lake Pointe Health Science
Center, pursuant to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

6. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant
to §551.074 (Personnel Matters)

lll.  Adjourn Executive Session

IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Mayor Johannessen
VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions

1. "Unit Citation" Recognition - Rockwall Fire Department - Eng. 04, C Shift (Captain Jimmy
Cowan, Driver Engineer Justin Barker, Firefighter Michael Sauder, and Firefighter Luke
Speaker) and
"Life Saving Award" - Rockwall Police Department (Sgt. Aaron Raymond)

Page 1 of 1128



2. "Certificates of Merit"

Rockwall Police Department (Lt. Jeff Lutes, Lt. Aaron McGrew, Sgt. Craig Goff, Officer Collin
Hartman, Officer Barrett Morris, Officer Gunnor McGee, Sgt. Cameron Parker, Officer Jason
Blackwood, Officer Calyton Lamb, Officer Garrett Stewart, Det. Laurie Burks, Officer Dylan
Sparks, SRO Gil Lombana, Officer Sonja Doss, Officer Aaron Woolverton, Sgt. James Watson,
Sgt. Mathew Joseph, Officer Thomas Bruce)

Rockwall County EMS (Tactical Dr. Adam Klaff, EMS Medic Seth Bogard, EMS Medic Russ
Warren)

VIl. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any
guestions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

VIll. Open Forum

This is a time for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda
or set for a public hearing. To speak during this time, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City
Council" form to the City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. Per Council
policy, public comments should be limited to three (3) minutes out of respect for others' time. On topics
raised during Open Forum, please know Council is not permitted to respond to your comments during
the meeting since the topic has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Meetings Act
requires that topics of discussion/deliberation be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance
of the Council meeting). This, in part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also
be involved in the discussion.

IX. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session

X. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are routine/administrative in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City
Council meeting, and/or they do not warrant Council deliberation. If you would like to discuss one of
these items, please do so during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 5, 2024 city council meeting, and take any
action necessary.

2. Consider approval of an ordinance approving a negotiated settlement between the Atmos
Cities Steering Committee and Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division regarding the
2024 Rate Review Mechanism filing, adopting tariffs as part of the settlement, and take any
action necessary.

3. P2024-027 - Consider a request by James Murphey on behalf of John Arnold of Falcon Place
SF, LTD for the approval of a Replat for the Winding Creek Subdivision consisting of 132
single-family residential lots on a 78.831-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17, 17-01, 22,
22-04 & 22-05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) for Single-Family 16 (SF-16)
District land uses, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141
and Clem Road, and take any action necessary.

Page 2 of 1128



Xl.

4. MIS2024-001 - Consider approval of a resolution establishing a public hearing date for the

consideration of an updated Land Use Assumptions Report, Capital Improvements Plan, and
the adoption of Roadway, Water, and Wastewater Impact Fees, and take any action
necessary.

5. SP2024-014 - Consider a request by Dnyanada Nevgi of SRV Land Building and Real Estate,
LLC on behalf of Naomi Freeman of Buffalo Country Properties, LLC for the approval of
an Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement in conjunction with an approved Site
Plan for a Retail Building and Daycare Facility on a 2.649-acre parcel of land identified as Lot
13 of the Rockwall Business Park East Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Commercial (C) District, generally located on the southside of E. Ralph Hall Parkway
west of the intersection of E. Ralph Hall Parkway and S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any
action necessary.

6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with
Rockwall County for $2,000,000 in funding associated with design planning/engineering
related to State Highway 205 (SH 205), including authorizing staff to move forward with the
Requests for Qualifications (RFQs) process, and take any action necessary.

Public Hearing Items

If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address
City Council" form to the City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. The
Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call upon you to come forth at the proper time. Please limit your
comments to no more than three minutes.

1. Z2024-031 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Paul and Dioselina
Curbow for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill
Adjacent to an Established Subdivision on a 0.2753-acre tract of land identified as a portion
of Block 20 of the Lowe & Allen Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, addressed as 510 W. Kaufman Street, and take any action
necessary (1st Reading).

2. 22024-034 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kari J'Layne Mayfield
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing a Short-Term
Rental on a 0.1980-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 28, Block A, Windmill Ridge Estates,
Phase 4B, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 13
(PD-13) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed as 161 Walnut Lane, and take
any action necessary (1st Reading).

3. 22024-032 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by the City of Rockwall
for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change amending Planned Development
District 13 (PD-13) [Ordinance No.’s 81-05, 84-43, & 94-41] for the purpose of consolidating
the regulating ordinances for a 149.97-acre tract of land situated within the James Smith
Survey, Abstract No. 200, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development District 13 (PD-13) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District and Neighborhood
Services (NS) District land uses, generally located in between W. Ralph Hall Parkway, Horizon
Road [FM-3097], and Tubbs Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Page 3 of 1128



4. 72024-033 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of
Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Bill Lofland for the approval of an ordinance for
a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and General Retail (GR) District land uses on a 544.89-acre tract of
land identified as Tracts 3 & 3-1 of the A. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 123 [355.146-acres];
Tracts 7 & 7-2 of the W. H. Baird Survey, Abstract No. 25 [45.744-acres]; and Tracts 3 & 4 of
the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128 [144.00-acres], City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205) and SH-
205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY QV) District, generally located on the east and west side of
S. Goliad Street [SH-205] at the corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and S.
Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XIl. Action Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to speak during Open Forum.

1. Discuss and consider a request from SPR Packaging, LLC regarding approval of a nominating
resolution for participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program in the Office of the
Governor Economic Development and Tourism, and take any action necessary.

Xlll. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations or
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at
(972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of
the matters listed on the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code 4 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney) 9 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) 9 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and 9§ 551.087 (Economic
Development)

I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City
Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 16th day of August, 2024 at 5PM and
remained so posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Teague, City Secretary Date Removed
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Page 4 of 1128



Unit Citation

Rockwall Fire Department

takes great pleasure in recognizing with pride and
admiration the members of

Engine 04 “C” Shift
CA Jimmy Cowan
DE Justin Barker

FF Michael Sauder
FF Luke Speaker

On April 28, 2024 at 12:24 PM the Rockwall Fire Department responded to a reported breathing
difficulty in the 1000 block of High Cotton Ln. While en route to the scene, Dispatch notified
the crew that the patient was not breathing and CPR was being started by a family member.
Engine 4 arrived alongside a crew from Rockwall County EMS and assisted with resuscitation
efforts that were being performed by an officer from the Rockwall Police Department.
Coordinated resuscitation efforts involving the Rockwall Police Department, Rockwall County
EMS, and the crew from Engine 4 continued on scene until the patient regained a pulse and vital
signs improved. The patient was then transported to a nearby hospital where care continued until
he was released only days later.

All involved first responders, including the crew from Engine 4 “C” shift, displayed
extraordinary teamwork and coordination in providing rapid, quality medical treatment.

Given in grateful appreciation this 19" day of August 2024.

Fire Chief Date

Page 5 of 1128



Page 6 of 1128



Certificate of Merit Award

On Friday, June 21%t, 2024 at approximately 1:30 P.M., the Rockwall Police
Department SWAT Team was requested to assist the Rowlett Police
Department with a complex hostage situation at The Bayside Apartment
complex in their city. The suspect, a violent offender wanted out of multiple
jurisdictions, had stolen a Penske box truck and fled from officers in a multi-
agency vehicle pursuit. At the conclusion of the vehicle pursuit, the suspect
was believed to have fled on foot into an apartment with a knife and held a
female hostage against her will. During the incident, it was learned the
suspect was out on bond for Aggravated Kidnapping and Sexual Assault.
The Crisis Negotiation Team communicated and negotiated with the suspect
for several hours, and ultimately intelligence was gleaned that indicated the
hostage was in immediate danger. The Rockwall Police Department SWAT
Team conducted an emergency entry, rescued the victim, and took the
suspect into custody.

Hostage situations are among the most complex and hazardous incidents
faced by law enforcement in the performance of their duties. The Rockwall
Police Department SWAT Team, Crisis Negotiation Team, and Tactical
Emergency Medical Support Unit successfully mitigated a complex and
dangerous situation by performing a hostage rescue that resulted in a safe
resolution for all involved parties. Their actions that day demonstrated the
highest levels of professionalism and reflected the highest standards of
police and tactical operation standards, they are being conferred a Certificate
of Merit.

Page 7 of 1128



MINUTES

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Monday, August 5, 2024 - 5:00 PM
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I Call Public Meeting to Order

Mayor Johannesen called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Trace Johannesen, Mayor
Pro Tem Clarence Jorif, and Councilmembers Sedric Thomas, Mark Moeller, Anna Campbell, Dennis Lewis
and Tim McCallum. Also present were City Manager Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager Joey Boyd and City
Attorney Frank Garza. Mayor Johannesen then read the below-listed discussion items into the record
before recessing the public meeting to go into Executive Session.

. Executive Session

1. Discussion regarding status of City of Rockwall vs. Richard Brooks & Lake Pointe Health Science
Center, pursuant to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

2.  Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives, pursuant to
§Section 551.087 (Economic Development)

3. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property in the vicinity of the downtown
area, pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney)

4. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant to
§551.074 (Personnel Matters)

lll.  Adjourn Executive Session

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:57 p.m.

IV.  Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.)

Mayor Johannesen reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m.

V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Mayor Pro Tem Jorif

Mayor Pro Tem Jorif delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
VI.  Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any
qguestions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

Chairman of the P&Z Commission, Derek Deckard came forth and briefed the Council on recommendations
of the Commission regarding planning-related items on tonight’s meeting agenda. Councilmember

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 1 of 11

Page 8 of 1128



McCallum asked Mr. Deckard to provide clarification on the P&Z’s discussion regarding possible approval of
the artificial turf (related case) setting a precedence. Mr. Deckard provided numerous comments, clarifying
this issue and generally expressing a desire for the topic of artificial turf to be further discussed between the
P&Z Commission and the City Council, as this topic will likely begin coming up more and more as time
progresses. No action was taken by Council following this appointment item.

Vil. Open Forum

Mayor Johannesen explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth and
speak at this time.

Bob Wacker
309 Featherstone
Rockwall, TX

Mr. Wacker came forth and provided various comments related to the ‘artificial turf case’ on tonight’s
meeting agenda. He shared that he believes this particular location warrants an exception and that artificial
turf should be allowed to remain in place there.

Scott Blackwood

3514 Lakeside Drive

(in the Lakeside Village subdivision)
Rockwall, TX 75087

Mr. Blackwood expressed that he and his wife live in a home along the shores of Lake Ray Hubbard. There
were two very large, mature pecan trees in the takeline when they bought the home. He has concerns
about one tree that got blown over during the May 28 storms. After it fell, city Parks Department staff
(Director Travis Sales) did come out and cut down and removed that tree that initially fell. Now, the second
remaining tree, which is a 65-70’ tall pecan tree located in the takeline area along Lake Ray Hubbard, has
since fallen. He shared that City of Dallas says it’s the City of Rockwall’s responsibility; however, City of
Rockwall states it’s Dallas’ responsibility. He also mentioned that the seawall is an issue, and Dallas says it’s
Rockwall’s responsibility, but Rockwall says it’s Dallas’ responsibility for seawall repair.

Richard Henson
2424 FM 549
Rockwall, TX

Mr. Henson shared that “controlling density” has been recently utilized by some county officials as part of
their successful campaign strategies for attaining elected office. He expressed that Rockwall does not have a
road problem; rather, Rockwall has a density problem. He went on to share concerns about developers who
are bringing forth proposals for lots that are quite small. He expressed that the city recently received a
proposal from a developer related to a very large tract of land located south of IH-30. In the proposal, his
own personal (2,800 square foot) brick and mortar home is wider than 90% of the residential lots being
proposed within the development. Out of 960 proposed lots, his 2,800 square foot home would not fit on
875 of the lots. He went on to express that 52’ to 72’ wide lots should not be defined as ‘low density’ in the
city’s Comprehensive Plan. He explained that 33 of the proposed lots would fit within the boundaries of his
own, personal 5 acre tract of land that he lives on. He encouraged the Council to not allow the developer to
proceed with those size lots when this case lands before it next month. He thanked Councilmembers for
their service to the community, expressing great adoration for each of them.

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 2 of 11

Page 9 of 1128



Melba Jeffus
2606 Cypress Drive
Rockwall, TX 75087

Mrs. Jeffus shared that she and her husband moved to Rockwall in 2004 to fulfill his husband’s dream of
having a home on some acreage. They bought a home on some acreage that had a barn on it. However, that
dream got destroyed by the “Fontana Ranch” development that came in. Since 2004, she has watched
development after development after development get approved by the P&Z Commission and City Council.
She wonders what the city defines “high density” as vs. “low density,” as she strongly believes that all the
developments that are being regularly approved are absolutely ‘high density’ neighborhoods. Intersections
are highly congested, especially considering that most households have multiple vehicles because a lot of
them have teenage drivers in the home. She expressed extreme dissatisfaction with the ‘high density’
developments going on in the city and county.

VIIl. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session

Mayor Pro Tem Jorif moved to reappoint to the Board of Adjustments the following individuals for an
additional two-year term (to expire August 2026): Eric Smith (as a member, replacing Joseph Wright) and
Sue Conaway (as a member) and Kerry Shepherd (as an “alternate” (newly appointed) board member, with
a term to run through Aug. 2026). Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of
7 ayes to 0 nays.

Regarding the Park Board, Mayor Pro Tem Jorif moved to reappoint Jake Wimpee, Amanda Fowler and
Marcia Hassenyager to an additional two-year term (through August of 2026) and to newly appoint Mike
McEwen (to replace Kevin Johnson, who ‘termed out’ — a two-year appointment to run through August of
2026). Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously (7 ayes to 0 nays).

Regarding the Animal Adoption Center / Shelter Advisory Committee, Councilmember Moeller moved to
reappoint Herman Hudson and Gary Freedman to an additional term to run through August of 2026.
Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

Regarding the Historic Preservation Advisory Board, Councilmember Campbell moved to reappoint Tiffany
Miller, Allison McNeely and Haydon Frasier (for an additional, two-year term to expire in August of 2026).
Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.

IX. Consent Agenda

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the July 15, 2024 city council meeting, and take any action
necessary.

2. P2024-026 - Consider a request by Brian Berry of PR BBS, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for
Lot 1, Block A, Vigor Way Plaza Addition being a 1.74-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block
A, BW Plus Executive Residency Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 550 E.
IH-30, and take any action necessary.

3.  Z2024-028 - Consider a request by David Naylor of Rayburn Electric Cooperative for the approval

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 3 of 11

Page 10 of 1128



of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from Planned Development District 44 (PD-44), Commercial
(C) District, and Heavy Commercial (HC) District to Planned Development District 44 (PD-44) for
Commercial (C) District and Heavy Commercial (HC) District land uses for a 95.00-acre tract of land
identified as Tract 3 of the W. H. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 26; Lots 6, 7, 8, & 9, Block A, Rayburn
Country Addition; Lot 1, Block 1, Helwig Addition; and Lot 1, Block A, Estep Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, Heavy Commercial (HC) District,
and Planned Development District 44 (PD-44) for Commercial (C) District land uses, situated
within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, generally located in between Mims Road, Sids
Road, and S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

4. 22024-030 - Consider a request by David Bohorquez for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision on a 0.2273-acre
parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block B, Harbor Landing, Phase 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District
land uses, addressed as 329 Harborview Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda (#s 1, 2, 3, and 4). Councilmember
Thomas seconded the motion. The ordinance captions were read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 24-30

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 44 (PD-44) [ORDINANCE NO.’S 97-
28 & 09-03] AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE
ZONING FROM A HEAVY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT AND COMMERCIAL (C)
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 44 (PD-44) AND FOR THE
PURPOSES AMENDING THE CONCEPT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
FOR A 90.37-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOTS 6, 7, 8 & 9, BLOCK A,
RAYBURN COUNTRY ADDITION; LOT 1, BLOCK 1, HELWIG ADDITION; LOT 1,
BLOCK A, ESTEP ADDITION; AND TRACT 3 OF THE W. H. BARNES SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NO. 26, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND
BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND FURTHER DEPICTED
IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS;
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 24-32
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-340

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) [ORDINANCE NO. 23-40]
AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED,
SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL
ADJACENT TO AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION
OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.2273-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS
LOT 5, BLOCK B, OF THE HARBOR LANDING, PHASE 2 ADDITION, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 4 of 11

Page 11 of 1128



AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion to approve the entire Consent Agenda passed unanimously of those present (7 ayes to 0
nays).

X. Action Items

1. 22024-029 - Discuss and consider a request by Ben Lewis for the approval of an ordinance for a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Detached Garage that exceeds the maximum size and height on a
0.3168-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 3, Block 5, Garner Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the North SH-205 Overlay
(N. SH-205 QOV) District, addressed as 911 N. Alamo Street, and take any action necessary (2nd
Reading).

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve Z2024-029. Councilmember Moeller seconded the motion.
Mayor Pro Tem Jorif indicated he will again vote against this variance, as he believes approval of this
request may set a precedence. So, he indicated his vote will remain a ‘no.” The ordinance caption was
then read as follows:
CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 24-31
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-339

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02]
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A DETACHED
GARAGE THAT EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM SIZE AND HEIGHT ON A 0.3168-ACRE
PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 3, BLOCK 5, GARNER ADDITION, CITY
OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 nay (Jorif).

2. MIS2024-016 - Discuss and consider a request for an appeal of a decision by the Planning and
Zoning Commission concerning a request by John Hagaman of Sabre Realty for the approval of a
Miscellaneous Case for an Exception to allow artificial or synthetic plant materials on a 10.104-
acre parcel of land identified as Lot 3 of the Carlisle Plaza Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District and
the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 559 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary.

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background and historical information concerning this agenda
item. The applicant is asking Council to consider appealing a decision recently made by the city’s Planning &
Zoning Commission regarding the applicant’s request to allow previously installed artificial turf to remain in
place at the subject property. The turf is located within four median islands within the shopping center

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 5 of 11

Page 12 of 1128



(parking lot). The city council previously adopted ordinance number 24-21 back on June 3 of this year
(2024), which allowed the Planning & Zoning Commission to grant exceptions that would allow synthetic /
artificial plant material to exist on certain non-residential properties in certain circumstances. Prior to the
June 2024 ordinance adoption, artificial plant materials (‘artificial turf’) were prohibited. Mr. Miller
explained that on June 14, 2024, the applicant submitted an application asking for an exception that would
allow for the (previously installed) artificial turf to remain in place. However, at the June 25 Planning &
Zoning Commission, the request for an exception was “denied without prejudice” by the Commission by a
vote of 6 to 0. The applicant then resubmitted an application seeking an exception on July 19. Exhibits and
additional information was provided by the applicant along with the July 19 (application) submittal.
Thereafter, the request was considered to have been ‘denied with prejudice’ by the Planning & Zoning
Commission after a motion to approve it failed to result in the required ‘super majority’ vote needed. So,
the applicant is now submitting this appeal, asking the City Council to consider overturning the Planning &
Zoning Commission’s decision. A potential approval to overturn the P&Z Commission’s prior ruling will
require a ‘super majority’ vote of Council this evening (six out of seven members of Council must agree to
overturn the P&Z’s prior decision).

He explained that the Commission recently ‘voted down’ this request for the artificial turf installed at this
location (which is within an existing shopping center along IH-30 near Ridge Road) after it has previously
voted down the request “without prejudice” earlier this calendar year.

The applicant, John Hagaman (address given as 30 Shadydale Lane — Rockwall, TX) then came forth and
addressed Council. He explained that this artificial turf was installed in these medians three years ago, and —
at the time - he did not know that there was a ban on the allowance of artificial turf within the city. The turf
that was installed in four islands within the shopping center’s parking lot after trying various alternatives to
attempt to address the muddy medians. It’s only been within the last six months that the artificial turf has
been noticed (though, again, it was installed before that time). He explained that the alternatives to the
artificial turf are mud or dead grass or nothing. He explained that rocks do not work well, as they present a
safety (trip) hazard. He explained a bit about how he plans to maintain the turf over time within these four
medians. He shared that two owners own this shopping center, and he helps manage it. He believes
approval of this turf is a ‘no brainer.” He thinks that artificial turf will be a topic that will begin to come
before the city more and more as time progresses, and he believes approval of this request will be a good
‘case study’ for the city. He thinks the city beginning to allow artificial turf in residential areas is a move in
the right direction. Also, he believes the City should begin allowing the material in some commercial areas
as well.

Councilmember McCallum shared that he is personally in this shopping center area every morning at 5:45
a.m. He pointed out that no irrigation exists in the medians of this shopping center, and there is no way to
get irrigation to these medians. He believes the turf looks good and is a good solution at this location / in
this instance. So he would like to see a motion made to grant approval for this exception so that the turf is
able to remain in place.

Councilmember Lewis sought and received clarification on the timeline associated with when the turf was
installed and when the city council adopted related ordinance regulations. He shared that the turf was
installed originally in the Fall of 2020, and it was installed without permission / without a permit. Mr. Miller
confirmed that, if the applicant had applied for a permit at that time, he would not have been allowed to
install the turf.

Councilmember Thomas clarified that a lot of the areas in and around this shopping center (built in 1987)

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 6 of 11

Page 13 of 1128



have either grass or rocks in them. These four medians are the only ones where artificial turf has been
placed. Councilmember Thomas pointed out that maintenance of the medians / islands within the parking
lot area is the responsibility of the shopping center owner. Mr. Hagaman shared that grass just will not
grow in these four medians. Mr. Hagaman shared that changing this to turf greatly enhanced the customer
satisfaction for patrons to the shopping center, especially for those visiting the Cici’s restaurant.

In the fall of 2020 (when this was initially installed), approval of artificial turf was not even something that
would have been considered by the city. Mr. Miller shared that in June of 2024, the ordinance that was
adopted by Council did begin allowing for the P&Z Commission to consider possibly granting exceptions to
allow for artificial turf under certain circumstances.

Mayor Pro Tem Jorif asked if the applicant would be willing to remove the artificial turf, then go through the
proper process to request it, and — if approved — have it installed again. Mr. Hagaman shared that he will
prefer to not to have to ‘play that game’ and go to the extra financial expense that doing so would involve.

Councilmember Lewis shared that he personally and historically has a lot of concerns with individuals
and/or companies who do things without first seeking a permit and/or city approval prior to doing those
things. He asked and received clarification on how the turf will be maintained over time and by whom. Mr.
Hagaman shared that they have property maintenance staff who visit this site and the other site in
Carrollton regularly (daily), and they have been maintaining the turf well over the last four years since the
fall of 2020 when the turf was initially laid.

Councilmember Moeller shared that he traditionally also has issues with individuals who do not first seek
and receive approval from the city before moving forward with something. However, in this particular
situation, common sense tells him that the artificial turf installed in this particular location within these
medians makes good sense.

Councilmember Campbell expressed the belief that this is the best these areas have ever looked. She then
asked for clarification on how long it took for the turf to be repaired and wrinkles removed after the FedEx
mailbox was removed from the one median. Mr. Hagaman shared that it took two days to make the repairs.
She understands that installation of artificial turf is very important, and its maintenance over time is also
very important. She acknowledged that the way these areas currently look (with the turf installed) is the
best it’s looked in the 30+ years she has lived here in Rockwall.

Mr. Miller, Planning Directors, shared that artificial turf has a permit process associated with it because
installation of turn does tend to impact ‘water run off’ / drainage. Also, ensuring it’s properly installed is
also very important to ensure grass and weeds do not grow up in it over time and that it does not become
wrinkled over time. It's important for the city to ensure that the water drains properly and that the run off
that turf creates does not adversely impact water flow, water speed, and adjacent properties.

Mayor Johannesen asked if Mr. Hagaman’s turf would pass the city’s standards (i.e. related to drainage) for
turf today. Mrs. Williams, City Engineer, shared that she does not know since she has not seen the plans and

does not have knowledge of its installation and specifics related to it.

Councilmember Campbell shared that, although the current owner is maintaining the turf well, it is
uncertain how it will be maintained in the future if a new shopping center owner were to buy the property.

Mr. Hagaman asked for clarification on if the city watched and had oversight on the turf that was installed

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 7 of 11

Page 14 of 1128



in front of Gloria’s at The Harbor. Mr. Miller shared that city staff (specifically the city’s Parks Director,
Travis Sales) did oversee its installation. Mr. Hagaman shared that his turf is very similar to the turf in front
of Gloria’s, and that turf has held up very well over time. Mr. Miller shared that, for several reasons, these
two installations really cannot rightfully be compared.

Councilmember Lewis asked if the medians could be concreted (underneath the turf). Mr. Miller shared that
he could put concrete, however, the existing trees must remain in place. Mr. Hagaman expressed that he
really does not want to potentially lose the only trees that exist within the shopping center / within these
medians.

Councilmember McCallum shared that he believes the turf at this particular location has made this property
look better. He acknowledged that Mr. Hagaman has been rightfully ‘slapped on the hand’ for installing it
without first seeking permission from the city. He explained that he listened in on the recent P&Z
Commission meeting, and he understands the request was denied due to the requirement that it have a
super majority vote of members in order for it to be approved.

Councilmember McCallum then went on to make a motion to approve the request associated with
MIS2024-016, allowing the previously installed turf to remain in place. Councilmember Moeller seconded
the motion. City Attorney Frank Garza clarified that, in order for this motion to pass, it will require 6
affirmative votes of the Council as a whole. Following that clarification, the motion to approve MIS2024-
016 failed by a vote of 5 ayes with 2 nays (Jorif and Thomas).

3. Discuss and consider a status update from the Rockwall Area Chamber of Commerce regarding
Hotel Occupancy Tax ("HOT") funding received from the City and regarding programs offered
through the Convention & Visitors Bureau on behalf of the City of Rockwall.

Jodi Willard, Director of Tourism with the Rockwall Area Chamber, came forth and briefed Council on
various activities and tourism-promoting efforts that the Chamber has been involved with over the last few
months.

Councilmember Campbell thanked Ms. Willard for all of her work since the time she came on board and
began these efforts 14 months ago. She believes Mrs. Willard has done a fabulous job. Mayor Pro Tem Jorif
echoed Councilmember Campbell’s positive sentiments and compliments of Mrs. Willard and her efforts on
behalf of the City of Rockwall. Council took no formal action as a result of Mrs. Willard’s briefing / this
agenda item.

4. Discuss and consider possible amendments to the City Charter and associated process, and take
any action necessary.

Councilmember McCallum shared that several months ago he and Councilmember Jorif begun discussing
some possible changes to the city’s Charter. He then consulted with the city attorney, Frank Garza, to glean
some feedback. He went on to explain that he is proposing Council consider a potential review of the City
Charter. Councilmember McCallum went on to brief Council on several things including a history of past
Charter reviews, some of his suggested considerations, reasons why periodic review is important, as well as
the few ways by which the Charter can (legally) be amended.

City Attorney Frank Garza indicated he is not aware of anything in the existing Charter that is out of
compliance with state law at this time; however, he’s not done a thorough review of it recently. He went on

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 8 of 11

Page 15 of 1128



to explain that, if such changes are needed, they can go in one future ballot proposition to just clean up
technical things that may need to be changed to become up-to-date and compliant with any new state laws.
This was done back in 2015 when that Charter update occurred.

McCallum went on to explain that, by Charter, if a Charter Review Commission is appointed by Council, it
must consist of ten citizens and it is given a maximum of six months to conduct its review of the Charter and
propose any changes to City Council. He went on to suggest that a Charter Review Commission be formed,
with each sitting councilmember selecting one citizen to serve on it and three Commission members being
chosen ‘at large’ by the collective Council as a whole. He suggested that the timeline be such that the
Commission be appointed and begin its work in Sept. and finish its work by the January / February 2025
timeframe so that any Charter amendments could then be placed on a May 2025 ballot (at the General
Election). He stressed that any changes to the Charter would not impact sitting council members or the city
until May 2026 and beyond.

Councilmember Lewis shared that he may not agree with some of the proposed changes Councilmember
McCallum has suggested may need to be made to the Charter; however, he has no problem forming a
Charter Review Commission and having a review of the City Charter.

One of the things Councilmember McCallum expressed should be changed in the existing Charter is to do
away with Council appointing members to the city council when vacancies arise. He believes a ‘special
election’ should be called and citizens should vote on who fills the vacant seats. Also, he believes that
candidates being elected by plurality vote should be changed to them being elected by majority vote, and
that run-off elections should be held accordingly. He acknowledged that three of the current seven council
members came onto the city council via being appointed to fill vacancies. He means no offense to them and
believes they are great council members; however, he believes citizens should get to vote on who fills
vacant seats in the future.

Mayor Johannesen clarified that, when vacancies on Council are filled, the elected officials that serve as the
“voice of the citizens” are the ones making the decisions regarding who will fill the vacant seat(s). He
expressed he likes how our current process requires that any vacant seat that is filled must then be placed
on the very next, upcoming election ballot for the voters to decide. He believes this affords a good ‘checks
and balances.” He is open to look into the Charter; however, he did point out that conducting special
elections can be expensive.

City Attorney, Frank Garza pointed out years ago, cities could hold elections at four different times per year;
however, that is no longer the case. Now cities can only hold elections twice per year — in May and in
November. He clarified that - if, for example, a councilmember were to resign the last week of August in a
given year...that would be too late to call for an election to be held in November to fill the vacant seat. So
that vacancy would exist until the following May if the city council did not have a Charter option to appoint
someone to fill the vacancy. So this is something Council needs to consider when evaluating a possible
change in in this regard.

Councilmember McCallum shared he would like to see either the Council review the City Charter and move
forward with some recommended changes or that a Charter Review Commission be formed to do so. He
stressed his opinion that he is not in favor of councilmember being elected by ‘plurality’ vote. He believes a
candidate should be required to glean fifty percent of the vote, and - if they don’t — they should have to be
forced into a runoff election. He thinks our city is big enough now to require this and he believes that is a

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 9 of 11

Page 16 of 1128



pretty common standard nowadays. He went on to also suggest that the Charter be evaluated to decide if
councilmembers serving in “even numbered seats” should be required to give up their seat (resign) to run
for the position of mayor.

Mayor Johannesen suggested that this be placed on an upcoming Executive Session item for discussion with
the city attorney. Councilmember McCallum requested that the topic also be placed as an Action Item on
the next council meeting, as he prefers that possible formation of a Charter Review Commission not be
potentially delayed. Mr. Garza indicated this can be an Executive Session item for attorney/client
consultation. Mayor Johannesen expressed that, when government aims to move quickly, it causes him to
give pause and be inclined to slow down. Mr. Garza, city attorney, went on to further clarify that action
could potentially be taken as a result of the Executive Session discussion if this is placed (solely) on Ex.
Session (without it having to be listed under “Action Items”).

Mayor Pro Tem Jorif shared a desire to make sure that citizens have an opportunity to make informed
decisions about who fills a council seat. He shared that, over the last three years, the Council has
experienced ‘appointment after appointment after appointment.’ Indication was given that, following each
city council (vacancy) appointment, those seats were to be placed on a ballot for election; however, no one
stepped up to file to run (against the incumbent who had been appointed). Mayor Johannesen asked if this
concern is truly a concern related to a City Charter problem or to an ‘involvement’ problem. Councilmember
Jorif responded by expressing he believes there is a lackadaisical attitude and an ‘involvement problem’
when it comes to candidates running for city council.

Councilmember Campbell shared that she is in favor of a Charter review. She does have concerns about the
costs to the citizens related to putting on elections. When the city does not have any contested races for an
election, the costs of putting on elections can be pretty hefty.

Councilmember Thomas shared that he does not have an issue with forming a Charter Review Commission /
Committee, as he believes reviewing the Charter at least once every ten years is prudent to do. He would
like to see what a Charter Review Commission might recommend related to some of the existing Charter
provisions.

Councilmember Lewis shared that, related to council member vacancies that get filled by someone being
appointed, citizens still make their voices known and ‘have a say’ when they show up during election
season. He was appointed to fill a vacancy; however, four months later he had to run for election. He
believes it is probably very rarely that someone who gets appointed to fill a vacancy really serves for a long
time — he guesses someone could be appointed in June to fill a vacant seat, and that person would then
serve for 11 months until the next (May) election, but the citizens do ultimately have ‘a say’ in whether a
council member stays or goes.

Mayor Johannesen shared that he, while understands Councilmember McCallum has put a lot of research
and thought into this topic and some suggestions, perhaps there additional things that have not yet been
thought of that need consideration relative to our existing City Charter. Since this is the first time the full
council is seeing this information or considering possible formation of a citizen review committee or
possible charter amendments, he will appreciate an ability to think about these matters and digest the
information first before moving forward.

Following brief, additional remarks by Councilmember McCallum, Council took no action as a result of this

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 10 of 11

Page 17 of 1128



discussion item.

XI.  City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and Related Discussions Pertaining To Current City
Activities, Upcoming Meetings, Future Legislative Activities, and Other Related Matters.

1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report
2.  Fire Department Monthly Report

3.  Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report
4. Police Department Monthly Report

5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison

6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics

City Manager, Mary Smith, shared that IH-30 (re)construction related closures went as well as could be
expected this past weekend. Also, yesterday the local Kiwanis Club’s Triathlon took place with 30% more
participants this year compared to last year. A lot of police officers helped with that, and they did a great
job.

Xill. Adjournment

Mayor Johannesen adjourned the meeting at 7:24 p.m.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 19*" DAY
OF AUGUST, 2024.

TRACE JOHANNESEN, MAYOR
ATTEST:

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY

08/05/2024 City Council Mtg. Minutes
Page 11 of 11

Page 18 of 1128



Page 19 of 1128



Page 20 of 1128



Page 21 of 1128



Page 22 of 1128



Page 23 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 24-33

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, APPROVING A NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT BETWEEN THE
ATMOS CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE (“ACSC”) AND ATMOS ENERGY
CORP., MID-TEX DIVISION REGARDING THE COMPANY’S 2024 RATE
REVIEW MECHANISM FILING; DECLARING EXISTING RATES TO BE
UNREASONABLE; ADOPTING TARIFFS THAT REFLECT RATE
ADJUSTMENTS CONSISTENT WITH THE NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT;
FINDING THE RATES TO BE SET BY THE ATTACHED SETTLEMENT
TARIFFS TO BE JUST AND REASONABLE AND IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST;
APPROVING AN ATTACHMENT ESTABLISHING A BENCHMARK FOR
PENSIONS AND RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS; REQUIRING THE
COMPANY TO REIMBURSE ACSC’'S REASONABLE RATEMAKING
EXPENSES; DETERMINING THAT THIS ORDINANCE WAS PASSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS OPEN
MEETINGS ACT; ADOPTING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; DECLARING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND REQUIRING DELIVERY OF THIS ORDINANCE TO
THE COMPANY AND THE ACSC’S LEGAL COUNSEL.

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of Atmos Energy Corp.,
Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), and a regulatory authority with an interest in the
rates, charges, and services of Atmos Mid-Tex; and

WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”), a coalition
of similarly-situated cities served by Atmos Mid-Tex (“ACSC Cities”) that have joined together to
facilitate the review of, and response to, natural gas issues affecting rates charged in the Atmos Mid-
Tex service area; and

WHEREAS, ACSC and the Company worked collaboratively to develop a Rate Review
Mechanism (“RRM”) tariff that allows for an expedited rate review process by ACSC Cities as a
substitute to the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”) process instituted by the Legislature,
and that will establish rates for the ACSC Cities based on the system-wide cost of serving the Atmos
Mid-Tex Division; and

WHEREAS, the current RRM tariff was adopted by the City in a rate ordinance in 2018; and

WHEREAS, on about April 1, 2024 Atmos Mid-Tex filed its 2024 RRM rate request with ACSC
Cities based on a test year ending December 31, 2023; and

WHEREAS, ACSC coordinated its review of the Atmos Mid-Tex 2024 RRM filing through its
Executive Committee, assisted by ACSC’s attorneys and consultants, to resolve issues identified in the
Company’s RRM filing; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee, as well as ACSC’s counsel and consultants, recommend
that ACSC Cities approve an increase in base rates for Atmos Mid-Tex of $164.7 million on a system-
wide basis with an Effective Date of October 1, 2024; and
WHEREAS, ACSC agrees that Atmos plant-in-service is reasonable; and

Page 24 of 1128



WHEREAS, with the exception of approved plant-in-service, ACSC is not foreclosed from future
reasonableness evaluation of costs associated with incidents related to gas leaks; and

WHEREAS, the attached tariffs (Attachment 1) implementing new rates are consistent with the
recommendation of the ACSC Executive Committee, are agreed to by the Company, and are just,
reasonable, and in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the settlement agreement sets a new benchmark for pensions and retiree medical
benefits (Attachment 2); and

WHEREAS, the RRM Tariff contemplates reimbursement of ACSC’s reasonable expenses
associated with RRM applications.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

Section 1. That the findings set forth in this Ordinance are hereby in all things approved.

Section 2. That, without prejudice to future litigation of any issue identified by ACSC, the City
Council finds that the settled amount of an increase in revenues of $164.7 million on a system-wide
basis represents a comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate issues affecting the rates, operations,
and services offered by Atmos Mid-Tex within the municipal limits arising from Atmos Mid-Tex’s 2024
RRM filing, is in the public interest, and is consistent with the City’s authority under Section 103.001 of
the Texas Utilities Code.

Section 3. That despite finding Atmos Mid-Tex’s plant-in-service to be reasonable, ACSC is
not foreclosed in future cases from evaluating the reasonableness of costs associated with incidents
involving leaks of natural gas.

Section 4. That the existing rates for natural gas service provided by Atmos Mid-Tex are
unreasonable. The new tariffs attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment 1, are just and
reasonable, and are designed to allow Atmos Mid-Tex to recover annually an additional $164.7 million
on a system-wide basis, over the amount allowed under currently approved rates. Such tariffs are
hereby adopted.

Section 5. That the ratemaking treatment for pensions and retiree medical benefits in Atmos
Mid-Tex’s next RRM filing shall be as set forth on Attachment 2, attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

Section 6. That Atmos Mid-Tex shall reimburse the reasonable ratemaking expenses of ACSC
in processing the Company’s 2024 RRM filing.

Section 7. That to the extent any resolution or ordinance previously adopted by the Council is
inconsistent with this Ordinance, it is hereby repealed.

Section 8. That the meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all things conducted
in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.

Section 9. That if any one or more sections or clauses of this Ordinance is adjudged to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining provisions
of this Ordinance, and the remaining provisions of the Ordinance shall be interpreted as if the offending
section or clause never existed.

Page 25 of 1128



Section 10. That consistent with the City Ordinance that established the RRM process, this
Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage with rates authorized by attached tariffs to
be effective for bills rendered on or after October 1, 2024.

Section 11. That a copy of this Ordinance shall be sent to Atmos Mid-Tex, care of Chris Felan,
Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs Mid-Tex Division, Atmos Energy Corporation, 5420 LBJ
Freeway, Suite 1862, Dallas, Texas 75240, and to Thomas Brocato, General Counsel to ACSC, at Lloyd
Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701.

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, BY A VOTE OF TO , ON THIS THE 19th DAY OF AUGUST, 2024.

Trace Johannesen, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank Garza, City Attorney

Page 26 of 1128



Page 27 of 1128



Page 28 of 1128



Page 29 of 1128



Page 30 of 1128



Page 31 of 1128



Page 32 of 1128



Page 33 of 1128



Page 34 of 1128



Page 35 of 1128



Page 36 of 1128



Page 37 of 1128



Page 38 of 1128



Page 39 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

385 S. GOLIAD STREET « ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 « EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

TO: Mayor and City Council

DATE: August 19, 2024

APPLICANT: James Murphey

CASE NUMBER: P2024-027; Replat for the Winding Creek Subdivision
SUMMARY

Consider a request by James Murphey on behalf of John Amold of Falcon Place SF, LTD for the approval of a Replat for the
Winding Creek Subdivision consisting of 132 single-family residential lots on a 78.831-acre tract of land identified as Tracts
17, 17-01, 22, 22-04 & 22-05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) for Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District land uses, generally located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and Clem Road, and take any action necessary.

PLAT INFORMATION

M Purpose. The applicant is requesting approval of a Replat for the 78.831-acre residential subdivision (i.e. Winding Creek
Subdivision) for the purpose of establishing new franchise utility easements associated with the development of the
proposed subdivision. The applicant’s request does not change the current lot count or configuration, and based on staffs
review the subdivision plat meets all of the technical requirements outlined within the Subdivision Ordinance [Chapter 38,
Subdivisions, Municipal Code of Ordinances] and the Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Ordinance No. 21-49].

M Background. On January 18, 2011, the City Council annexed the subject property by adopting Ordinance No. 11-03 [Case
No. A2010-002]. At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District. On April 5, 2021, the
City Council approved a request to rezone [Case No. 22021-005] the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to
Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Ordinance No. 21-17] for Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District land uses. On June
21, 2021, the City Council approved a preliminary plat [Case No. P2021-026] for a 38.012-acre portion of the subject
property. On August 2, 2021, the City Council approved an amendment to Planned Development District 91 (PD-91)
[Case No. 22021-027; Ordinance No. 21-36] increasing the area of the Planned Development District to 58.842-acres.
This ordinance also increased the overall lot count from 56 lots to 98 lots. On October 18, 2021, the City Council
approved a request to again amend Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Case No. 22021-036; Ordinance No. 21-
49] to incorporate an additional 20.00-acres into the Planned Development District and increase the lot count to 132 lots.
On December 6, 2021, the City Council approved a Preliminary Plat [Case No. P2021-051] and Master Plat [Case No.
P2021-052] for the Winding Creek Subdivision. On February 15, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a
Tree Mitigation Plan [Case No. MIS2022-003] showing how the tree mitigation balance will be satisfied for the Winding
Creek Subdivision. On May 10, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a PD site plan [Case No. SP2022-
015] that finalized the landscape and hardscape plans for the proposed subdivision. On May 16, 2022, the City Council
approved a final plat [Case No. P2022-017] establishing the Winding Creek Subdivision.

M Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested
by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical
modifications and submittal requirements.

M Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the
conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below.

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL

Page 40 of 1128



M With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for the Winding Creek Subdivision, staff would propose the following
conditions of approval:

(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to the
filing of this Replat; and,

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by
the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

On August 13, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote
of 5-0, with Commissioners Conway and Thompson absent.

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL

Page 41 of 1128



City of Rockwall

ol Planning and Zoning Department

385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087

@

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

[~ S1AHF USE ONLY
PLANNING & ZONING CASE NO.

NOTE: THE APPLICATION IS NOT CONSIDERED ACCEPTED BY THE
CITY UNTIL THE PLANNING DIRECTOR AND CITY ENGINEER HAVE
SIGNED BELOW.

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING:
CITY ENGINEER:

PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BELOW TO INDICATE THE TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT REQUEST [SELECT ONLY ONE BOX]:

PLATTING APPLICATION FEES:
[T MASTER PLAT ($100.00 + $15.00 ACRE) !

[ PRELIMINARY PLAT ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) '
[T FINAL PLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE) '

[ REPLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE)
AMENDING OR MINOR PLAT ($150.00)

[ PLAT REINSTATEMENT REQUEST ($100.00)

SITE PLAN APPLICATION FEES:
O SITE PLAN ($250.00 + $20.00 ACRE) '
[0 AMENDED SITE PLAN/ELEVATIONS/LANDSCAPING PLAN ($100.00)

ZONING APPLICATION FEES:

[J ZONING CHANGE ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) *

O SPECIFIC USE PERMIT ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) ' &2
[ PD DEVELOPMENT PLANS ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE)

OTHER APPLICATION FEES:
O TREE REMOVAL ($75.00)
[ VARIANCE REQUEST/SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS ($100.00) 2

NOTES:

. IN DETERMINING THE FEE, PLEASE USE THE EXACT ACREAGE WHEN MULTIPLYING BY THE
PER ACRE AMOUNT. FOR REQUESTS ON LESS THAN ONE ACRE, ROUND UP TG ONE (1) ACRE.
: A $1,000.00 FEE WILL BE ADDED TO THE APPLICATION FEE FOR ANY REQUEST THAT

INVOLVES CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT OR NOT IN COMPLIANCE TO AN APPROVED BUILDING
PERMIT.

PROPERTY INFORMATION [pLEASE PRINT]
ADDRESS

BLOCK

suDIVISION ~ Winding Creek )

GENERAL LOCATION  Corner of Clem and 1141
ZONING, SITE PLAN AND PLATTING INFORMATION [pLEASE PRINT]

CURRENT ZONING CURRENT USE
PROPOSED USE

78.831 132 Residential ~ LOTS[PROPOSED] 137 Residential

[0 SITE PLANS AND PLATS: BY CHECKING THIS BOX YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT DUE TO THE PASSAGE OF HB3167 THE CITY NO LONGER HAS FLEXIBILITY WITH
REGARD TO ITS APPROVAL PROCESS, AND FAILURE TO ADDRESS ANY OF STAFF'S COMMENTS BY THE DATE PROVIDED ON THE DEVELOPMENT CALENDAR WILL

RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF YOUR CASE.
OWNER/APPLICANT/AGENT INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT/CHECK THE PRIMARY CONTACT/ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE REQUIRED]

PROPOSED ZONING

ACREAGE LOTS [CURRENT]

Oowner Falcon Place SF, Lid. I APPLICANT
CONTACT PERSON John Arnold CONTACTPERSON  James Murphey
ADDRESS 8214 Westchester Drive ADDRESS 8214 Westchester Drive

cITy,sTATE& ZIP  Dallas, Texas 75225

PHONE 214-888-8850
EMAL  jmurphey@skorburgcompany.com

Dallas, Texas 75225
214-888-8850
EMALL  jarnold@skorburgcomapny.com

NOTARY VERIFICATION [ReauireD]
BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED __JOohn Arnold
STATED THE INFORMATION ON THIS APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND CERTIFIED THE FOLLOWING:

CITY, STATE & ZIP
PHONE

[OWNER] THE UNDERSIGNED, WHO

‘I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | AM THE OWNER FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS APPLICATION; ALL INFORMATION SUBMITTED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT; AND THE APPLICATION FEE OF
3 150.00 , TO COVER THE COST OF THIS APPLICATION, HAS BEEN PAID TO THE CITY OF ROCKWALL ON THIS THE 5 DAY OF

July ,20 24 BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, | AGREE THAT THE CITY OF ROCKWALL (LE. “CITY") IS AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED TO PROVIDE
INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION TO THE PUBLIC. THE CITY IS ALSO AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED TO REPRODUCE ANY COPYRIGHTED INFORMATION

]

1]

t

Bh;ooge Ashlsy Van Voorhig ‘
y Commission £

2i1iz028 " r* :

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE ON THIS THE 2’5___7 DAY.GE July 2024

OWNER'’S SIGNATURE P

Z A.W/
- - LD 0%

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION + CITY OF ROCKWALL » 385 SOUTH GOLIAD STREET « ROCKWALL, TX 75087 « [P[ {972} 771-7735
Page 42 of 1128

o, Nota
wy LOURREESY expiey 1D 134742171

e

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS<




Page 43 of 1128



Page 44 of 1128



Page 45 of 1128



Page 46 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

385 S. GOLIAD STREET « ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 « EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

TO: Mayor and City Council
CC: Mary Smith, City Manager
Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager
FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning
DATE: August 19, 2024
SUBJECT: Resolution for Public Hearing for the 2024 Water, Wastewater, and Roadway Impact Fee Study

In accordance with Section 395.047, Hearing on Impact Fee, of Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, attached
is a resolution that will set the required public hearing date for the consideration of updates to the Roadway, Water, and
Wastewater Impact Fee Program for Monday, October 7, 2024. As part of this consideration -- at the meeting on October 7,
2024 -- the City Council will be required to adopt Land Use Assumptions Report and a Capital Improvement Plan for roadway,
water, and wastewater facilities.

The City’s consultants (Eddie Haas with Freese and Nichols, Inc and Derek Chaney, PE with Brikoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP)
will continue to work with staff and the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) on finalizing the impact fee report
that will be delivered to the City Council on September 2, 2024. Should the City Council have any questions, staff will be
available at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting.

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL

Page 47 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL
RESOLUTION NO. 24-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC HEARING
DATE TO CONSIDER THE APPROVAL OF UPDATED LAND USE
ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, AND IMPACT
FEES FOR THE 2024 IMPACT FEE UPDATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall has authorized an impact fee study to
determine whether to ‘adopt updated Land Use Assumptions (LUA), Capital Improvement Plan,
and Impact Fees for roadway, water, wastewater facilities in accordance with Chapter 395,
Financing Capital Improvements Required by New Development in Municipalities, Counties, and
Certain Other Local Governments, of the Texas Local Government Code (“Ch, 395 of the
TLGC”) and Atrticle lll, Impact Fee Regulations, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the City of
Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Ch. 395 of the TLGC requires the City Council of the City of Rockwall to hold a
public hearing to consider whether to update the Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvement
Plan, and Impact Fees for roadway, water, and wastewater facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The above recitals are found to be true and correct and they
are incorporated as findings of the City Council for all purposes.

SECTION 2. PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing of the City Council shall be held on
October 7, 2024 at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street, Rockwall, Texas, for the purpose
of considering amendments to the Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan, and
Impact Fees for roadway, water, wastewater facilities.

SECTION 3. PUBLIC NOTICE. Notice of the public hearing shall be published in a
newspaper of general circulation in' Rockwall County at least 30-days prior to the public hearing
date.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall be effective immediately
following its passage and approval by the City Council.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, ON THIS THE 19™ DAY OF AUGUST, 2024.

APPROVED:

Trace Johannesen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Teague, City Secretary

2024 Impact Fee Update Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Resolution No. 24-XX

Page 48 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

385 S. GOLIAD STREET « ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 « EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

TO: Mayor and City Council
CC: Mary Smith, City Manager
Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager
FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning
DATE: August 19, 2024
SUBJECT: SP2024-014; Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement for 962 E. Ralph Hall Parkway

The applicant, Dnyanada Nevgi of SRV Land Building and Real Estate, LLC, is requesting the approval of an Alternative Tree
Mitigation Settlement Agreement. The subject property is located on a 2.649-acre parcel of land identified as a Lot 13 of the
Rockwall Business Park East Addition, which is located on the southside of E. Ralph Hall Parkway west of the intersection of
E. Ralph Hall Parkway and S. Goliad Street [SH-205]. On August 13, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a
Site Plan [Case No. SP2024-014] and Treescape Plan for the development of a Retail Building and Daycare Facility on the
subject property. As part of this approval, the Planning and Zoning Commission also recommended approval of an Alternative
Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement. The Site Plan, Treescape Plan, and Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement
were approved by a vote of 5-0, with Commissioners Conway and Thompson absent.

The Treescape Data Table provided by the applicant indicates that 3,654.50-inches of trees will be removed from the subject
property as a result of the proposed development, and of that 2,015-inches are required to be mitigated for. According to
Subsection 05 (F), Mitigation Balance, of Article 09, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) “... (t)he
developer/property owner can provide the required number of trees -- four (4) inch caliper DBH minimum -- on the subject
property to offset the total mitigation balance ...” In this case, the landscape table provided by the applicant indicates that 288,
four (4) caliper inch caliper trees will be planted on-site. With the planted trees, the remaining mitigation balance will be 1,727
inches (i.e. 2015 — [288 x 4.00] = 1,727). The applicant has indicated to staff that they would like to pay 20.00% of the
mitigation balance (i.e. 1727 x 0.20 =345 inches) for a total fee of $34,500.00 (i.e. 345-caliper inches x $100.00 per caliper
inch = $34,500) The remaining mitigation balance of 1,382 inches (i.e. 1,727 inches — 345 inches = 1,382 inches) for a total of
345 trees (i.e. 1,382 inches / 4 inch-caliper trees = 345 trees) will be satisfied by paying the amount quoted to purchase 345
trees, which equates to $82,476.56 Based on this, the applicant is requesting an Alternative Tree Mitigation Agreement to pay
an alternate balance of $116,976.56 (i.e. $34,500,00 + $82,476.56 = $116,976.56) into the tree fund, if approved. The City
Council is charged with acting upon the proposed Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement. Should the City Council
have any questions concerning the applicants request, staff will be available at the meeting on August 19, 2024.

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL

Page 49 of 1128



Page 50 of 1128



g ) —_—— —l T - — — — — — — — — — —_
W 0.75 --—\“RALP / \\
- 64 10' PUBLIC UTILITY \11 - N
IH EASEMENT
Al 175
CIRS MFG 5
S SO 5 20' LANDSCAPE (\( —
1 LO SETBACK — - \
b -15' BUILDING (\
SETBACK EXISTING TREE e —— —
e TO REMAIN, TYP.
A I " LAWN SOLID SOD 2 10' LANDSCAPE 15' BUILDING
B e BERMUDAGRASS, / SETBACK / SETBACK
. B B I —— ' v
g BN, ~ RB TIFWAY 419, TYP.x LO \ ,
O \ 2% RETE: ~_f AT 7L s
[ N N N A 2 ¥ N MYAST4V-X
g M A o ; V|
\_ LAWN SOLID SOD C OHe o = . T ( 25'x50 (
BERMUDAGRASS ol : SO o ow 4 ey G ‘ = (. .
OO + o+ + + . A
5 998 SF §:§ . \ +++++++++ﬁ +5®e«3 »' @&i\\‘
’ - ERSEMENT e NS e N
AFTER SCHOOL e} 1 N SBE LN,
sl + 3Q#4RE LANE, PUBLIC ACCESS, | R RN =K g '5‘
g8 > AND-GALITY EASEMENT EXISTING TREE R Jes7e
PUBLIC WATER - [ ’ TO REMAIN, TYP. LIMIT OF HYDROMULCH ++++++++y+/+’\i P "
INE EASEMENT 99 tLot 1 el bl PP SN o §
§:§ ++++ 4' P r o+ r o+ o+ o+ :ef * ++++++++[++++ E_ §
39 ++++ ' 2362 4 ++++++++++++++++++ AP ++++++++l+++++_§_I ‘ \"/
¢ ' = ° N J
— /WI\ +++* + o+ +++++++++ + ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ +—+++ + + /+ + + +++++++++++++—“ > V4
—___ = e OEE + o+ L.—— ++ + 4+ o+ ¢+ + + ¥+ F F F F O+ + + o+ + 4+ + 4+ + 4+ A+ )+ + o+ o+ +I + + /'
— —— + o+ o+ + o+ o+ A+ 4 Fo+ A /+ F + + + + 4+ 4+ + + + + + + ¥+ 4/- + o+ + + o+
| ;.0.0.5!" S+ F e S S SN AN A + 0+ A Y o+t T+ o+ + 4+ + o+ + /4 + o4 o+ M+ o+ i /
AENT‘\ ‘“I,:’:,". 1 \ . + i +—+ + T i i e i T i e S AL B S R S S S S S S A + o+ + 4+ |+ —
G. 26 ‘ ‘i:z'::“‘" SO g+++ ++++++ +++++n‘ ‘r++++++++++7t+L+L+++++++++++++++++ +| 4 +++++++*1++++ p
KXY .
:’:’0\ |+++++ ++++++++\F+N++\++++++++r+*+*++++‘+‘+‘¥‘¥TTT'+/+ LR L D
-~ | e 25 | VIEG ~ + 4( + o+ o+ + o+ AN\ FE F Nk F +\ + N I e +++++++T+++++_'
\ } \ MFG | / \ LAWN HYDROMULCH BERMUDAGRASS +++++++T+++++l
MULCH EXISTING TREE 24' FIRE LANE, PUBLIC AGCES! '"TIFWAY 419’ R R
! L 24' FIRE LANE, PUBLIC ACCESS, — STEP OUT TYP. ‘ TO REMAIN, TYP. W/ TEMPORARY IRRIGATION EXISTING TREE PRSP LD A
| ] AND UTILITY EASEME TO REMAIN. TYP
| / AND UTILITY EASEMENT UNTIL 100% ESTABLISHMENT , . ‘+++++++|+++++++
1 1 ! . R SO | TYP. IN DISTURBED AREAS PR R
\ N > LO LE N 7" Tl T [ A+ o+ 4+ A+ o+ o+ o+ + + +N+ o+ + 4+ + \¢ + o+ o+ o+ + ¥ Ak + ]+
\ ‘ AW, T 18" MULCH 1 ’ ¥ '+¢q j+++~‘+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++‘++++‘ o+ b+ o+ B\ + ;%i%; F o+ + + + 4+ ot LTt +/+/+++++++
‘{ 2 ” i <,/ STEP OUT TYP. | LE NI, +++"*++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++‘++++i+ - i — +‘ﬂgﬂ:‘ .
\ I H T St ‘}‘ 150 I ;-oj+++ +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++‘++++++++++++ P L + N
~ T ) - | 1 U
I ‘\ 6 it ) MEG | ++ 0 LPING—+=—t—+ + + + + +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++_J+ Y
7 ‘ + X \+ o+ o+ + + 4+ o+ O+
\ >, NRS |, f . ' ;
g \ & OF
‘l' / 6 I | S ‘ ++
N | e IH | e — "
Q | *— T T ! Tt g% XN
| | ‘ | — 24fREIANE, PUBLIC ACCESS, — ‘ 3¢ - o ’ \ 14’“@5
I:]> | _A [ J '3/'1F5G NB-UHLITY EASEMENT +++ ) S 4 "ih@ggﬂ'll CITY OF ROCKWALL NOTES
| ' = — - A )
| \\ Nappas 1 - : ) + ot h\‘g;\‘r.‘] 1. NO TREES WITHIN 5'-0" OF ANY UTILITIES
20 i LE MEGIEN 4 g N N T LESS THAN 10" DIAMETER
<o L iSRSt el j 7 .| 10 BUILDING 8 \"— 2. NO TREES WITHIN 10'-0" OF ANY UTILITIES
o N e ran e TN OETBACK R VS 2 A GREATER THAN 10" DIAMETER
- - - 10 AT wié%%' Y P 4 \ 3. IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL MEET
S DW o F L AR\ « \ REQUIREMENTS IN THE UDC
o | [ sG SG AN | (/{,@Q‘\\w :ﬁ'ﬁiﬁ"" & 74 |
D [ AP &SNS Sl b ‘
[ s &9 5 | B «
»»»»»»» B TR R s |
B ——————— PUBLIC DRAINAGE AND — =k S 1
9 " EROSION HAZARD EASEMENT X ' lf. | M AREA (SF)AREA (AC)AREA (%)
LOR S e e R \ LOT AREA (PROPOSED LOT 5a) 115,390 2.65 -
11,367 SF \ LOT AREA (PROPOSED LOT 5b) 158,147 3.63 -
5 [ A | BUILDING SIZE (LOT 5a) 17,367 0.39 15.05%
I7H an | DAY-CARE me A } BUILDING SIZE (LOT 5b) - - -
\ N BSTE'DII\&LCJSLEE DBESI|3_|,R'[JYBPS. X \4'/4}{_;,}}}&4!, | IMPERVIOUS AREA (LOT 5a) 57,937 1.33 50.21%
| ' | ‘3}’\1}!}}”.‘,3 | IMPERVIOUS AREA (LOT 5b) 11,302 026 7.14%
= o e )/ —\PUBLIC DRAINAG
5 ! < r 7 e
= = : i / : 4 uﬁié" "‘r’ AND EROSI o }
| A NS = ose % HAZARD EASEMH Q ‘
LAWN SOLID SOD S T S B ST I o e
g — Beamupachas e [/ ST [« I\ — AR
I ARTIFICIAL TURF e CTIRWAYSAT YRS e e Tl s “‘&"’.f\ SAMITARY SEWER EASEME QK”‘V /] PROJECT
REFER TO CIVIL PLANS, TYP. = N Bl I S — L T s (& S SREF. CABINET B. PG. 3 X ,%\ | A J 10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
, { T () 5) | ) SRER PG Y TS P LOCATION
o K [ g T REF. CABINET B, PG. 37
PLAYGROUND S I < PRRCT w % PRRCT
I BY OTHERS = 4 ey B / . RRCT.
Pl /
I EXISTING TREE -\ * 7
TO REMAIN, TYP.
‘ | :
ey 74 A V2 4 G P A 040,04 P 0 O O O O 0 250 5 O 4 2 % % 5 ¥ R A T NSO/ 2\ )y /0 &4 — o o .
S S NS A N.I?ir‘f,‘ ) SRy (e N 3
| | — - : s @Krﬂ‘g‘ % §\‘v’i‘ @Avvr ol
T \ bl o ~ 5% "\J g
T P R P DR R S u&w)ﬁgg.& &
I - - - - - - F- A0 S - - - - - -~ M
20" SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 20' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
CABINET B, PG. 37 CABINET B, PG. 37
P.RR.C.T. P.RR.C.T.
10' BUILDING SETBACK
LOCATION MAP
1"=1000'
PROJECT NAME: PINNACLE MONTESSORI ROCKWALL
EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 5A, ROCKWALL BUSINESS PARK EAST
CASE NUMBER: P2022-006
CURRENT OWNER: BUFFALO COUNTRY PROPERTIES LLC,
ATTN: RAJESH MALVIYA
12050 RESEARCH ROAD, #9305
FRISCO, TX 75033
DEVELOPER: SRC LAND BUILDING AND REAL ESTATE LLC
811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY, SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080
* 4245 North Central Expy
SCALE: 1" = 30'-0" B E I_ L E o Suite 501
FIRMA . Dallas, Texas 75205
N 0 15 30 60 e 214.865.7192

(SP2024-014)

OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY

SUITE 306

RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

Ll

=

—_ o0

FE

—

N

N <L <

(7p] o
BSE,
= X< 2% 2
= O < uwl z
— .
o9Qx &
o = o =
= < < 2
LLI >- oZ ; 5
= << 3
— o O =
o LLl a O o
N =2 x o

<L <

s

=0T

T <2

’

L
T
SHEET TITLE
LANDSCAPE
PLAN
T
SHEET NUMBER
T
ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020

Page 51 of 1128


User
Typewriter
(SP2024-014)


LANDSCAPE NOTES

10.

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND
PROPOSED SITE ELEMENTS AND NOTIFY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. SURVEY DATA
OF EXISTING CONDITIONS WAS SUPPLIED BY OTHERS.

CONTRACTOR  SHALL LOCATE ALL EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND NOTIFY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OF ANY CONFLICTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL
EXERCISE CAUTION WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY
OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM 2% SLOPE
AWAY FROM ALL STRUCTURES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE
FINAL CONTOURS AS INDICATED. LEAVE AREAS TO
RECEIVE TOPSOIL 3" BELOW FINAL FINISHED GRADE IN
PLANTING AREAS AND 1" BELOW FINAL FINISHED
GRADE IN LAWN AREAS.

ALL PLANTING BEDS AND LAWN AREAS SHALL BE
SEPARATED BY STEEL EDGING. NO STEEL EDGING
SHALL BE |INSTALLED ADJACENT TO BUILDINGS,
WALKS, OR CURBS. CUT STEEL EDGING AT 45 DEGREE
ANGLE WHERE IT INTERSECTS WALKS AND CURBS.

TOP OF MULCH SHALL BE 1/2" MINIMUM BELOW THE
TOP OF WALKS AND CURBS.

ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE SOLID SOD 'TAHOMA 31’
BERMUDAGRASS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE
DRAWINGS.

ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE
PROVIDED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND
IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH RAIN AND FREEZE SENSORS
AND EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) WEATHER-BASED
CONTROLLERS AND SAID IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL
BE DESIGNED BY A QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL AND
INSTALLED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BID PROPOSAL LISTING
UNIT PRICES FOR ALL MATERIAL PROVIDED.

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING
ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PERMITS.

MAINTENANCE NOTES

THE OWNER, TENANT AND THEIR AGENT, IF ANY,
SHALL BE JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPE.

ALL LANDSCAPE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT
AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES. THIS SHALL
INCLUDE MOWING, EDGING, PRUNING, FERTILIZING,
WATERING, WEEDING AND OTHER SUCH ACTIVITIES
COMMON TO LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE.

ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF
TRASH, LITTER, WEEDS AND OTHER SUCH MATERIAL
OR PLANTS NOT PART OF THIS PLAN.

ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A
HEALTHY AND GROWING CONDITION AS IS
APPROPRIATE FOR THE SEASON OF THE YEAR.

ALL PLANT MATERIAL WHICH DIES SHALL BE
REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF EQUAL OR
BETTER VALUE.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SEPARATE BID
PROPOSAL FOR ONE YEAR'S MAINTENANCE TO BEGIN
AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

GENERAL LAWN NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE OPERATIONS AND
AVAILABILITY OF EXISTING TOPSOIL WITH ON-SITE
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE LAWN AREAS 1" BELOW
FINAL  FINISHED GRADE PRIOR TO TOPSOIL
INSTALLATION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE
FINAL CONTOURS AS INDICATED ON CIVIL PLANS.
ADJUST CONTOURS TO ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE
AWAY FROM BUILDINGS. PROVIDE UNIFORM
ROUNDING AT TOP AND BOTTOM OF SLOPES AND
OTHER BREAKS IN GRADE. CORRECT IRREGULARITIES
AND AREAS WHERE WATER MAY STAND.

4. ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE FINE GRADED, IRRIGATION
TRENCHES COMPLETELY SETTLED AND FINISH GRADE
APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO LAWN
INSTALLATION.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL ROCKS 3/4"
DIAMETER AND LARGER, DIRT CLODS, STICKS,
CONCRETE SPOILS, ETC. PRIOR TO PLACING TOPSOIL

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL LAWN AREAS
UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE. THIS SHALL INCLUDE, BUT
NOT BE LIMITED TO: MOWING, WATERING, WEEDING,
CULTIVATING, CLEANING AND REPLACING DEAD OR
BARE AREAS TO KEEP PLANTS IN A VIGOROUS,
HEALTHY CONDITION.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ESTABLISHMENT OF
ACCEPTABLE TURF AREA AND SHALL PROVIDE
REPLACEMENT FROM LOCAL SUPPLY IF NECESSARY.

SOLID SOD NOTES

1. PLANT SOD BY HAND TO COVER INDICATED AREAS
COMPLETELY. ENSURE EDGES OF SOD ARE TOUCHING.
TOP DRESS JOINTS BY HAND WITH TOPSOIL TO FILL
VOIDS.

2. ROLL GRASS AREAS TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH, EVEN
SURFACE, FREE FROM UNNATURAL UNDULATIONS.

3. WATER SOD THOROUGHLY AS SOD OPERATION
PROGRESSES.

4. IF INSTALLATION OCCURS BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 1
AND  MARCH 1, OVER-SEED 'TAHOMA 31’
BERMUDAGRASS SOD WITH WINTER RYEGRASS, AT A
RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER ONE THOUSAND (1000)
SQUARE FEET.

SCALE: 1" = 30'-0"

0 15 30 60

HYDROMULCH NOTES

CONTRACTOR SHALL SCARIFY, RIP AND LOOSEN ALL
AREAS TO BE HYDROMULCHED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH
OF 4" PRIOR TO TOPSOIL AND HYDROMULCH
INSTALLATION.

'"TAHOMA 31' BERMUDAGRASS SEED SHALL BE EXTRA
HULLED AND TREATED LAWN TYPE, SHALL BE
DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN ITS ORIGINAL UNOPENED
CONTAINER AND SHALL MEET STATE LAW
REQUIREMENTS.

FIBER SHALL BE ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%)
WOOD CELLULOSE FIBER, DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN
ITS ORIGINAL UNOPENED CONTAINER AS
MANUFACTURED BY 'CONWEB' OR EQUAL.

FIBER TACK SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN ITS
ORIGINAL UNOPENED CONTAINER AND SHALL BE
'"TERRO-TACK  ONE', AS MANUFACTURED BY
GROWERS, INC. OR EQUAL.

HYDROMULCH WITH 'TAHOMA 31' BERMUDAGRASS
SEED AT A RATE OF TWO (2) POUNDS PER ONE
THOUSAND (1000) SQUARE FEET.

USE A 4'X8' BATTER BOARD AGAINST ALL BED AREAS.

IF INSTALLATION OCCURS BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 1
AND MAY 1, ALL HYDROMULCH AREAS TO BE WINTER
RYEGRASS, AT A RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER ONE
THOUSAND (1000) SQUARE FEET. CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE REQUIRED TO RE-HYDROMULCH WITH
'"TAHOMA 31" BERMUDAGRASS THE FOLLOWING
GROWING SEASON AS PART OF THIS CONTRACT.

ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE HYDROMULCHED SHALL
HAVE ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) COVERAGE
PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS - Lot ba
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

NON-RESIDENTIAL R.O.W. BUFFER

1.

Ten (10') foot-wide landscape buffer with one tree per
fifty (50) I.f. and one accent tree per (50) I.f., to include
groundcover, berm, and shrubbery

RALPH HALL PARKWAY: 272 I|.1.
Required Provided
10" wide buffer 20" wide buffer
(5) trees, 4" cal. (5) trees, 4" cal.
(5) accent trees (5) accent trees

RESIDENTIAL BUFFER

1.

Twenty (20') foot-wide landscape buffer with one tree per

twenty (20) I.f.

Residential Adjacency: 320 I.f.

Required Provided

20" wide buffer 20" wide buffer
(16) trees, 4" cal. (16) trees, 4" cal.

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING

1.

2.

Five (5%) percent of the interior parking lot shall be
landscape.
One tree per ten (10) spaces for lots over 20,000 s.f.

Total interior parking lot area: 23,764 s.f.
Total parking spaces: 61 spaces

Required Provided
1,188 s.f. (5%) 5,104 s.f.
(7) trees, 4" cal. (12) trees, 4" cal.

SITE LANDSCAPING

1.

2.

Fifteen (15%) percent of the total site shall be landscaped
for COMMERCIAL.

Fifty (50%) percent of the total requirements shall be
located in the front of and along side buildings for
COMMERCIAL.

Total site: 273,538 s.f.
Required Provided

41,031 s.f. (15%) 56,069 s.f. (20%)
20,516 s.f. (60%) 24,603 s.f. (60%)

DETENTION BASIN LANDSCAPING

1.

One (1) canopy tree and (1) accent tree per 750 s.f. of
dry area.

Detention Basin Area: 8,051 s.f.
Required Provided

(10) trees, 4" cal. (10) trees, 4" cal.
(10) accent trees (10) accent trees

LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS - Lot 5b
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

NON-RESIDENTIAL R.O.W. BUFER

1.

Ten (10') foot-wide landscape buffer with one tree per
fifty (50) I.f. and one accent tree per (50) I.f.

RALPH HALL PARKWAY: 596 I.f.

Required Provided

10" wide buffer 10" wide buffer

(12) trees, 4" cal. (9) trees, 4" cal.

(12) accent trees (12) accent trees
(3) existing trees

CITY OF ROCKWALL NOTES

NO TREES WITHIN 5'-0" OF ANY UTILITIES
LESS THAN 10" DIAMETER

NO TREES WITHIN 10'-0" OF ANY UTILITIES
GREATER THAN 10" DIAMETER
IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL MEET
REQUIREMENTS IN THE UDC

BELLE
FIRMA

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205
214.865.7192

(SP2024-014)

OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY

SUITE 306

RICHARDSON,

TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

PINNACLE MONTESSORI
ACADEMY ROCKWALL

PROJECT NUMBER: PMA032

E. RALPH HALL PARKWAY AND PLAZA DRIVE
ROCKWALL, TEXAS

SHEET TITLE

LANDSCAPE

NOTES

SHEET NUMBER

L2.02

ISSUE DATE:

03-20-2020
Page 52 of 1128


User_1
Typewriter
(SP2024-014)


SECTION 32 9300 - LANDSCAPE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 REFERENCED DOCUMENTS

A.

Refer to Landscape Plans, notes, details, bidding requirements,
special provisions, and schedules for additional requirements.

1.2 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A.

Work included: Furnish all supervision, labor, materials, services,
equipment and appliances required to complete the work covered
in  conjunction with the landscaping covered in these
specifications and landscaping plans, including:

1. Planting (trees, shrubs and grasses)

2 Bed preparation and fertilization

3. Notification of sources
4

Water and maintenance until final acceptance

5. Guarantee

1.3 REFERENCE STANDARDS

A.

C.

D.

American Standard for Nursery Stock published by American
Association of Nurserymen: April 14, 2014 Edition; by American
National Standards Institute, Inc. (Z60.1) — plant material

American Joint Committee on Horticultural Nomenclature: 1942
Edition of Standardized Plant Names.

Texas Association of Nurserymen, Grades and Standards

Hortis Third, 1976 - Cornell University

1.4 NOTIFICATION OF SOURCES AND SUBMITTALS

A.

Samples: Provide representative quantities of sandy loam soil,
mulch, bed mix material, gravel, crushed stone, steel edging and
tree stakes. Samples shall be approved by Owner's Authorized
Representative before use on the project.

1.5 JOB CONDITIONS

A.

General Contractor to complete the following punch list: Prior to
Landscape Contractor initiating any portion of landscape
installation, General Contractor shall leave planting bed areas
three (3") inches below final finish grade of sidewalks, drives and
curbs as shown on the drawings. All lawn areas to receive solid
sod shall be left one (1") inch below the final finish grade of
sidewalks, drives and curbs. All construction debris shall be
removed prior to Landscape Contractor beginning any work.

Storage of materials and equipment at the job site will be at the
risk of the Landscape Contractor. The Owner cannot be held
responsible for theft or damage.

1.6 MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEE

A.

B.

Maintenance:

1. The Landscape Contractor shall be held responsible for the
maintenance of all work from the time of planting until final
acceptance by the Owner. No trees, shrubs, groundcover or
grass will be accepted unless they show healthy growth and
satisfactory foliage conditions.

2. Maintenance shall include watering of trees and plants,
cultivation, weeding spraying, edging, pruning of trees,
mowing of grass, cleaning up and all other work necessary
of maintenance.

3. A written notice requesting final inspection and acceptance
should be submitted to the Owner at least seven (7) days
prior to completion. An on-site inspection by the Owner's
Authorized Representative will be completed prior to written
acceptance.

Guarantee:

1. Trees, shrubs and groundcover shall be guaranteed for a
twelve (12) month period after final acceptance. The
Contractor shall replace all dead materials as soon as
weather permits and upon notification of the Owner. Plants,
including trees, which have partially died so that shape, size,
or symmetry have been damaged, shall be considered
subject to replacement. In such cases, the opinion of the
Owner shall be final.

a. Plants used for replacement shall be of the same size
and kind as those originally planted and shall be planted
as originally specified. All work, including materials,
labor and equipment used in replacements, shall carry a
twelve (12) month guarantee. Any damage, including
ruts in lawn or bed areas, incurred as a result of making
replacements shall be immediately repaired.

b. At the direction of the Owner, plants may be replaced
at the start of the next year's planting season. In such
cases, dead plants shall be removed from the premises
immediately.

c. When plant replacements are made, plants, soil mix,
fertilizer and mulch are to be utilized as originally
specified and re-inspected for full compliance with the
contract requirements. All
included under "Work" of this section.

2. The Owner agrees that for the guarantee to be effective, he
will water plants at least twice a week during dry periods
and cultivate beds once a month after final acceptance.

3. The above guarantee shall not apply where plants die after
acceptance because of injury from storms, hail, freeze,
insects, diseases, injury by humans, machines or theft.

4. Acceptance for all landscape work shall be given after final
inspection by the Owner provided the job is in a complete,
undamaged condition and there is a stand of grass in all
lawn areas. At that time, the Owner will assume
maintenance on the accepted work.

Any necessary repairs under the Guarantee must be
made within ten (10) days after receiving notice, weather
permitting. In the event the Landscape Contractor does not
make repairs accordingly, the Owner, without further notice to
Contractor, may provide materials and men to make such repairs
at the expense to the Landscape Contractor.

Repairs:

1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A.

General: Comply with applicable federal, state, county and local
regulations governing landscape materials and work.

Personnel: Employ only experienced personnel who are familiar
with the required work. Provide full time supervision by a
qualified foreman acceptable to Landscape Architect.

Selection of Plant Material:

1. Make contact with suppliers immediately upon obtaining
notice of contract acceptance to select and book materials.
Develop a program of maintenance (pruning and fertilization)
which will ensure the purchased materials will meet and / or
exceed project specifications.

2. Substitutions: Do not make plant material substitutions. If
the specified landscape material is not obtainable, submit
proof of non-availability to Landscape Architect, together
with proposal for use of equivalent material.
bids are submitted, the Contractor is assumed to have
located the materials necessary to complete the job as
specified.

3. Landscape Architect will provide a key identifying each tree
location on site. Written verification will be required to
document material selection, source and delivery schedules
to site.

4. Measurements: Measure trees with branches and trunks or
canes in their normal position.
required sizes. Take caliper measurements six inches above
ground for trees up to and including 4" caliper size, and
twelve inches above ground for larger sizes. Measure main
body of all plant material of height and spread dimensions,

AND NOTES

do not measure from branch or root tip-to-tip.

5. Owner's Authorized Representative shall inspect all plant
material with requirements for genus, species, cultivar /
variety size and quality.

6. Owner's Authorized Representative retains the right to
further inspect all plant material upon arrival to the site and
during installation for size and condition of root balls and
root systems, limbs, branching habit, insects, injuries and
latent defects.

7. Owner's Authorized Representative may reject
unsatisfactory or defective material at any time during the
process work. Remove rejected materials immediately from
the site and replace with acceptable material at no additional
cost to the Owner. Plants damaged in transit or at job site
shall be rejected.

1.8 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

(B&B) Plants: Dig and prepare
shipment in a manner that will not damage roots, branches,
shape and future development.

Deliver plants in rigid container to
hold ball shape and protect root mass.

A. Preparation:
1. Balled and Burlapped
replacements are to be
2. Container Grown Plants:
B. Delivery:

1. Deliver packaged materials in sealed containers showing
weight, analysis and name of manufacturer. Protect
materials from deterioration during delivery and while stored
on site.

2. Deliver only plant materials that can be planted in one day
unless adequate storage and watering facilities are available
on job site.

3. Protect root balls by heeling in with sawdust or other
approved moisture retaining material if not planted within 24
hours of delivery.

4. Protect plants during delivery to prevent damage to root
balls or desiccation of leaves. Keep plants moist at all
times. Cover all materials during transport.

5. Notify Owner's Authorized Representative of
schedule 72 hours in advance job site.

delivery

6. Remove rejected plant material immediately from job site.

7. To avoid damage or stress, do not lift, move, adjust to
plumb, or otherwise manipulate plants by trunk or stems.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PLANTS

General: Well-formed No. 1 grade or better nursery grown stock.
Listed plant heights are from tops of root balls to nominal tops of
Plant spread refers to nominal outer width of the plant,
Plants will be individually approved by
the Owner's Authorized Representative and his decision as to

Quantities: The drawings and specifications are complimentary.
Anything called for on one and not the other is as binding as if
The plant schedule is an aid to

Quality and size: Plant materials shall conform to the size given
on the plan, and shall be healthy, symmetrical, well-shaped, full
branched and well rooted. The plants shall be free from injurious
insects, diseases, injuries to the bark or roots, broken branches,
objectionable disfigurements, insect eggs and larvae, and are to

A.
plants.
not to the outer leaf tips.
their acceptability shall be final.
B.
At the time
shown and called for on both.
bidders only. Confirm all quantities on plan.
C.
be of specimen quality.
Do not prune to obtain D.

Approval: All plants which are found unsuitable in growth, or are
in any unhealthy, badly shaped or undersized condition will be
rejected by the Owner's Authorized Representative either before
or after planting and shall be removed at the expense of the
Landscape Contractor and replaced with acceptable plant as

TREE PLANTING DETAIL LEGEND

specified at no additional cost to the Owner.

Trees shall be healthy, full-branched, well-shaped, and shall meet
the minimum trunk and diameter requirements of the plant
schedule. Balls shall be firm, neat, slightly tapered and well
wrapped in burlap. Any tree loose in the ball or with a broken
root ball at time of planting will be rejected. Balls shall be ten
(10") inches in diameter for each one (1") inch of trunk diameter,
measured six (6") inches above ball. (Nomenclature confirms to
the customary nursery usage. For clarification, the term
"multi-trunk” defines a plant having three (3) or more trunks of
nearly equal diameter.)

Pruning: All pruning of trees and shrubs, as directed by the
Landscape Architect prior to final acceptance, shall be executed
by the Landscape Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.

2.2 SOIL PREPARATION MATERIALS

2.3

m

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

O

NOT TO SCALE

A.

2

TREE: TREES SHALL CONFORM WITH
LATEST AMERICAN STANDARD FOR
NURSERY STOCK. www.anla.org

TREE PIT: WIDTH TO BE AT LEAST TWO
(2) TIMES THE DIAMETER OF THE ROOT
BALL CENTER TREE IN HOLE & REST
ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED NATIVE
SOIL.

ROOT BALL: REMOVE TOP )4 BURLAP
AND ANY OTHER FOREIGN OBJECT;
CONTAINER GROWN STOCK TO BE
INSPECTED FOR GIRDLING ROOTS.

ROOT FLARE: ENSURE THAT ROOT
FLARE IS EXPOSED, FREE FROM MULCH,
AND AT LEAST TWO INCHES ABOVE
GRADE. TREES SHALL BE REJECTED
WHEN GIRDLING ROOTS ARE PRESENT &
ROOT FLARE IS NOT APPARENT.

ROOTBALL ANCHOR RING: REFER TO
MANUFACTURER'S GUIDELINES FOR
SIZING. PLACE ROOTBALL ANCHOR
RING ON BASE OF ROOTBALL, TRUNK
SHOULD BE IN THE CENTER OF THE
RING.

ROOT ANCHOR BY TREE
SOLUTIONS.

STAKE

NAIL STAKE: REFER TO
MANUFACTURER'S GUIDELINES FOR
SIZING. INSTALL NAIL STAKES WITH
HAMMER OR MALLET FIRMLY INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND. DRIVE NAIL
STAKES FLUSH WITH "U" BRACKET
ADJACENT TO ROOTBALL (DO NOT
DISTURB ROOTBALL).

BACKFILL: USE EXISTING NATIVE SOIL
(no amendments) WATER THOROUGHLY
TO ELIMINATE AIR POCKETS.

MULCH: DOUBLE
HARDWOOD MULCH 2 INCH SETTLED
THICKNESS, WITH 2" HT. WATERING
RING; ENSURE THAT ROOT FLARE IS
EXPOSED. BELOW GROUND STAKE
SHOULD NOT BE VISIBLE.

SHREDDED

TREE STAKES:

TREE STAKE SOLUTIONS

STAKE' BELOW GROUND

AVAILABLE FROM:

Tree Stake Solutions

ATTN: Jeff Tuley
(903) 676-6143
jeff@treestakesolutions.com
www.treestakesolutions.com

'SAFETY
MODEL

OR APPROVED EQUAL. TREES SHALL BE
STAKED BELOW GROUND WHERE
NECESSARY; ABOVE GROUND STAKING
IS EXPRESSLY PROHIBITED.

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF
THE CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN A COPY
OF THE MANUFACTURER'S
SPECIFICATIONS PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF TREE  STAKES.
CONTRACTOR SHALL ADHERE TO
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION
GUIDELINES,  SPECIFICATIONS, AND
OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR TREE STAKE
INSTALLATION.

A.

Sandy Loam:

1. Friable, fertile, dark, loamy soil, free of clay lumps, subsail,
stones and other extraneous material and reasonably free of
weeds and foreign grasses. Loam containing Dallasgrass or
Nutgrass shall be rejected.

2. Physical properties as follows:
a. Clay — between 7-27 percent
b. Silt - between 15-25 percent
c. Sand - less than 52 percent

3. Organic matter shall be 3%-10% of total dry weight.

4. If requested, Landscape Contractor shall provide a certified
soil analysis conducted by an approved soil testing
laboratory verifying that sandy loam meets the above
requirements.

Organic Material: Compost with a mixture of 80% vegetative
matter and 20% animal waste. Ingredients should be a mix of
course and fine textured material.

Premixed Bedding Soil as supplied by Vital Earth Resources,
Gladewater, Texas; Professional Bedding Soil as supplied by
Living Earth Technology, Dallas, Texas or Acid Gro Municipal Mix
as supplied by Soil Building Systems, Dallas, Texas or approved
equal.

Sharp Sand: Sharp sand must be free of seeds, soil particles and
weeds.

Mulch: Double Shredded Hardwood Mulch, partially decomposed,
dark brown. Living Earth Technologies or approved equal.

Organic Fertilizer: Fertilaid, Sustane, or Green Sense or equal as
recommended for required applications. Fertilizer shall be
delivered to the site in original unopened containers, each
bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed statement of analysis.

Commercial Fertilizer: 10-20-10 or similar analysis. Nitrogen
source to be a minimum 50% slow release organic Nitrogen
(SCU or UF) with a minimum 8% sulfur and 4% iron, plus
micronutrients.

Peat: Commercial sphagnum peat moss or partially decomposed
shredded pine bark or other approved organic material.

MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS

A.

Steel Edging: All steel edging shall be 3/16" thick x 4" deep x
16' long with 6 stakes per section, painted black at the factory
as manufactured by The J.D. Russell Company and under its
trade name DURAEDGE Heavy Duty Steel.

Staking Material for Shade Trees: refer to details.
Gravel: Washed native pea gravel, graded 1 inch to 1-1/2 inch.

Filter Fabric: 'Mirafi Mirascape' by Mirafi Construction Products
available at Lone Star Products, Inc., (469) 523-0444 or
approved equal.

River Rock: 'Colorado' or native river rock, 2" - 4" dia.

SHRUBS / GROUNDCOVER,;
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

TOPDRESS MULCH PER
SPECIFICATIONS; 2" MINIMUM
SETTLED THICKNESS

TOP OF MULCH 1/2"
MINIMUM BELOW TOP OF
CONCRETE WALK / CURB

SCARIFY SIDES
CONCRETE WALK—\

Decomposed Granite: Base material shall consist of a natural
material mix of granite aggregate not to exceed 1/8" diameter in
size and shall be composed of various stages of decomposed
earth base.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 BED PREPARATION & FERTILIZATION

A.

Landscape Contractor to inspect all
report any deficiencies to the Owner.

existing conditions and

All planting areas shall be conditioned as follows:

1. Prepare new planting beds by scraping away existing grass
and weeds as necessary. Till existing soil to a depth of six
(6") inches prior to placing compost and fertilizer. Apply
fertilizer as per Manufacturer's recommendations. Add six
(6") inches of compost and till into a depth of six (6") inches
of the topsoil. Apply organic fertilizer such as Sustane or
Green Sense at the rate of twenty (20) pounds per one
thousand (1,000) square feet.

2. All planting areas shall receive a two (2") inch layer of
specified mulch.

3. Backfill for tree pits shall be as follows: Use existing top soil
on site (use imported topsoil as needed) free from large
clumps, rocks, debris, caliche, subsoils, etc., placed in nine
(9") inch layers and watered in thoroughly.

Grass Areas:

1. Blocks of sod should be laid joint to joint (staggered joints)
after fertilizing the ground first. Roll grass areas to achieve
a smooth, even surface. The joints between the blocks of
sod should be filled with topsoil where they are evidently
gaped open, then watered thoroughly.

3.2 INSTALLATION

A.

NOTE:

Maintenance of plant materials shall begin immediately after each
plant is delivered to the site and shall continue until all
construction has been satisfactorily accomplished.

Plant materials shall be delivered to the site only after the beds
are prepared and areas are ready for planting. All shipments of
nursery materials shall be thoroughly protected from the drying
winds during transit. All plants which cannot be planted at once,
after delivery to the site, shall be well protected against the
possibility of drying by wind and Balls of earth of B & B plants
shall be kept covered with soil or other acceptable material. All
plants remain the property of the Contractor until final
acceptance.

Position the trees and shrubs in their intended location as per
plan.

Notify the Owner's Authorized Representative for inspection and
approval of all positioning of plant materials.

Excavate pits with vertical sides and horizontal bottom. Tree
pits shall be large enough to permit handling and planting
without injury to balls of earth or roots and shall be of such
depth that,when planted and settled, the crown of the plant shall
bear the same relationship to the finish grade as it did to soil
surface in original place of growth.

Shrub and tree pits shall be no less than twenty-four (24")
inches wider than the lateral dimension of the earth ball and six
(6") inches deeper than it's vertical dimension. Remove and haul
from site all rocks and stones over three-quarter (%4") inch in
diameter. Plants should be thoroughly moist before removing
containers.

Dig a wide, rough sided hole exactly the same depth as the
height of the ball, especially at the surface of the ground. The
sides of the hole should be rough and jagged, never slick or
glazed.

Percolation Test: Fill the hole with water. If the water level does
not percolate within 24 hours, the tree needs to move to another
location or have drainage added. Install a PVC stand pipe per

NO STEEL EDGING SHALL

BE INSTALLED ALONG ‘ ‘

(-0

Cu (el _ . j% (el
A2 o R AN e ) (o) (S @%é S s o o 7
il el Ayl 1T
\ ‘ 111 111 1
V- | ==

\ \ /
EEERV .

SIDEWALKS OR CURBS

REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

FOR SPACING

SHRUB / GROUNDCOVER DETAIL

ROOTBALL,
DO NOT DISTURB

O

NOT TO SCALE

tree planting detail as approved by the Landscape Architect if the
percolation test fails.

Backfill only with 5 parts existing soil or sandy loam and 1 part
bed preparation. When the hole is dug in solid rock, topsoil from
the same area should not be used. Carefully settle by watering
to prevent air pockets. Remove the burlap from the top ) of the
ball, as well as all nylon, plastic string and wire. Container trees
will usually be root bound, if so follow standard nursery practice
of ‘root scoring’.

Do not wrap trees.
Do not over prune.

Mulch the top of the ball. Do not plant grass all the way to the
trunk of the tree. Leave the area above the top of the ball and
mulch with at least two (2") inches of specified mulch.

All plant beds and trees to be mulched with a minimum settled
thickness of two (2") inches over the entire bed or pit.

Obstruction below ground: In the event that rock, or
underground construction work or obstructions are encountered
in any plant pit excavation work to be done under this section,
alternate locations may be selected by the Owner. Where
locations cannot be changed, the obstructions shall be removed
to a depth of not less than three (3') feet below grade and no
less than six (6") inches below the bottom of ball when plant is
properly set at the required grade. The work of this section shall
include the removal from the site of such rock or underground
obstructions encountered at the cost of the Landscape
Contractor.

Trees and large shrubs shall be staked as site conditions require.
Position stakes to secure trees against seasonal prevailing winds.

Pruning and Mulching: Pruning shall be directed by the
Landscape Architect and shall be pruned in accordance with
standard horticultural practice following Fine Pruning, Class |
pruning standards provided by the National Arborist Association.

1. Dead wood, suckers, broken and badly bruised branches
shall be removed. General tipping of the branches is not
permitted. Do not cut terminal branches.

2. Pruning shall be done with clean, sharp tools.

3. Immediately after planting operations are completed, all tree
pits shall be covered with a layer of organic material two
(2") inches in depth. This limit of the organic material for
trees shall be the diameter of the plant pit.

Steel Curbing Installation:

1. Curbing shall be aligned as indicated on plans. Stake out
limits of steel curbing and obtain Owners approval prior to
installation.

2. All steel curbing shall be free of kinks and abrupt bends.

3. Top of curbing shall be 4" maximum height above final
finished grade.

4. Stakes are to be installed on the planting bed side of the
curbing, as opposed to the grass side.

5. Do not install steel edging along sidewalks or curbs.

6. Cut steel edging at 45 degree angle where edging meets
sidewalks or curbs.

3.3 CLEANUP AND ACCEPTANCE

A.

Cleanup: During the work, the premises shall be kept neat and
orderly at all times. Storage areas for all materials shall be so
organized so that they, too, are neat and orderly. All trash and
debris shall be removed from the site as work progresses. Keep
paved areas clean by sweeping or hosing them at end of each
work day.

END OF SECTION

3/16" X 4" BLACK EDGING,
STAKES ON INSIDE; EDGING SHALL

S
. v L N ONar BE 1/2" MAXIMUM HEIGHT
- /Wﬁéﬂ) P 95t j /Wb\ﬁtﬂ) P ABOVE FINISH GRADE
- L v -
PR GRS/ - PR LAWN / FINISH GRADE
aJL

POCKET PLANTING
NOT ALLOWED

BELLE
FIRMA

PREPARED SOIL MIX PER
——N__SPECIFICATIONS; TILL 6" MINIMUM
.~ OF PREPARED SOIL MIX INTO

I
\ 6" DEPTH OF EXISTING SOIL
NATIVE SOIL

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205
214.865.7192

(SP2024-014)

OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

Ll
=
—_ o0
S35
N
N <L <
(724 ; )
LLl O < o)
— X 25 2
= O < ul z
e o 2 - o
< < 2
w=zs  §
=z =
(&) w O &
<22~
s
= gt’ =
— —
o™z
L
T
SHEET TITLE
LANDSCAPE
SPECIFICATIONS
AND DETAILS
T
SHEET NUMBER
T
ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020

Page 53 of 1128


User_2
Typewriter
(SP2024-014)


10" PUBLIC UTILITY

\ EASEMENT
CIrRsY

CONg,
RETE Pavemey, -
L 20' LANDSCAPE (K — — ( £
-~/ emiok — - ; OMEGA DESIGN, LLC
- = *15 BUILDING e 0 - 811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
— T~ VAR - SUITE 306

RICHARDSON, TX 75080

T — /\/\ = 10' LANDSCAPE 15' BUILDING + +
P LT = / SETBACK SETBACK TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145
EXISTING TREE = EXISTING TREE TREE PROTECTION FENCING TO + 3+ .+
‘ ~ TN TO BE REMOVED, TYP. - TO REMAIN, TYP. REMAIN DURING CONSTRUCTION, M_O1
| [ go ¥ 4 S : TYP.,REFER TO 01/L1.01 REVISIONS
| \ 7 = —C 7—, =~ # | DATE COMMENTS
T | + N - i
; 230 ‘ ~— e e — — N\ 1 105.06.20 City Comments
AN o 1)/ N Dﬁ‘k N N2 _TREE PROTECTION FENCING TO il
D Sameg / N G REMAIN DURING CONSTRUCTION,K 2 [10.13.20 City Comments
{ | {Qeawa\m \ =~/ TYP., REFER TO 01/L1.01 ’ | N PPRTYY ity Commonts
s \ o\ D N AINAGE -~ — d
N AN Z % gt /7 .
4 7 ‘ o ] anl%( \ \ 187 4 112.06.21 City Comments
10" P\ RD £ ASEME\T Q%P \ ‘/ 5 103.03.22 City Comments
BASEMENT p \ // -|\' ] 6 (08.05.22 City Comments
" <L 05.
Yo - 7 105.17.24 City Comments
PUBLIC WATER - oyt
INE EASEMENT
QR A A
7 SO RO S OrTe
IS S TR TR e L= —
\ = L A IO N P S
/ \ S w—— e AN N PROFESSIONAL SEAL
~ / N\ - Ve Q%S e #‘0&' )?0974\‘ 777777
Al N el T g [ 2N B
/ 2393 h -_ // \ / \\\s\og\//&sose ‘x /
AE LANE, PUBLIC ACCESS ' EIBE LANE, PUBLIC NaY N [ 8
24 KIRE LANE, PUBLI L, \ 2 ZRND UTILITY EASEME e U
[ o ND SFETY EASEMENT =< x
- Iy .

- |\ ®

\ Qaws//\/ toeo\ /
anss _ /\ Q k .
K , \ _ // \\ ’Q_( '#1}

o~
*\\Jv\nﬁ—

PUBLC DRANAGE 8F
( MDeeosRh T
HABARR'EA Lt ::‘.“W S
AR ) qg. £

OWNER INFORMATION

17
L

X Q
Q2391 ) e
| - PUBLICACCESS, —
ITY EASEMENT

e~
h \ ! so%e Y F% OPED
| amsmereeromenese /T N %) (v ) (2 A
| e TYP., REFER TO 01/L1.01 < ./ - ;
‘ \ - — - \ ORB CRTRIB o
-, ‘ J
| —
‘ N pZ 6027 - \i% >~ O 8
1 5 =N " —PRUBLIC DF&\NAG’E/A\NE) 2 i N % g B
\ N - = f‘b - — N~
(T , ) = : X S ) [ERQ@ION HAZARD EASEMENT /0 SITE DATA AREA (SFIAREA (ACIAREA (%) Y S =<
‘\k’ . NP . /9/ \/ \ / e 2650 LOT AREA (PROPOSED LOT 5a) 115,390 2.65 - 3 —
+ ( \4 X 11,367 SF s IR AWA = LOT AREA (PROPOSED LOT 5b) 158,147 3.63 - % o S
NS, ><\* ) DAY-CARE Ny v BUILDING SIZE (LOT 5a) 17,367 0.39 15.05% s S &
JInIN 7 >,</ - ) BUILDING SIZE (LOT 5b) - - - o C
x
/1l \}°\ NV D e IMPERVIOUS AREA (LOT 5a) 57,937 133 50.21% >
| + N /4 i e e IMPERVIOUS AREA (LOT 5b) 11,302 026  7.14% 3
I e ; % ~ () 938 7
(b i = ¢ UBRIC DRAINAG 7 o °
1l St EROSION w) /)
| TSN 3 &% HAZARD EASEMENT/R** e
| { / ‘/0/)\ A Pd oy N
- A Vi / /
| } 5 9) ; Y %
= )
I | e — K TIAMTARK SEWER EASEME 7 / | PROJECT
| 7) ! SREF) CABINET B, PG. §7 VL T 7 10" SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LOCATION
| @{ Al PRRCT 2 e I
% b 4 \ E')(()ISB-E”\FI{(EI\;IFSE/EED TYP £ EXISTING TREE Z PRRC.T. PROJECT INFORMATION
| P TO REMAIN, TYP. s
| ,
| | o
| \
‘ : I =
I - _
>
R e P S e o A e AR e D A T TR Do AN IV RS P NN SN o e =
— m
= = / : T
1+ QQM"LT’("@; 7 " 4 L ,{7/'65‘ N 17// L@W%j % & g o 1 <DE
| 10\ Vi F‘ ¥ W /] [ AN \ , \ 711 / = (@ Q| N
|y / i 1 7 &666 4 - 3
| | i .L_\. - -l o Nz N = —_— —_—- o —_—- e w<i
\ O W 449.886% . % =z, .
+ | 20" SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 20" SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT — ! % § §
CABINET B, PG. 37 CABINET B, PG. 37 > O < =
PRRCT. PRRCT. o (@) 2 = >
— oM
'"TREE PRESERVATION NOTES 8. NO VEHICULAR / CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC OR LOCATION MAP = (a4 = = =
PARKING IS ALLOWED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE P é = =
1. EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED DURING OF TREES. o100 ﬂ = << X 9
CONSTRUCTION FROM TREE STRUCTURE DAMAGE AND a O 3
9. BORING OF UTILITIES MAY BE PERMITTED UNDER PROTECTED o
%&“ﬂ%ﬁ?'gyw?& SOIL UNDER AND AROUND DRIP LINE TREES IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES. THE MINIMUM LENGTH (& LU — g &
‘ ) : OF THE BORE SHALL BE THE WIDTH OF THE TREE'S CANOPY < 2 =
AND SHALL BE A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (48") REFER TO PLAN FOR _ T
2, lEFXéRI\\/(Al'RF(I)C?I\-Ir ST/RUCC':I'(L)JEE_I_IF?UI?:#:\(/IDQGED NDc;JTFI{::I\\I(G Ag‘\J/\'/A\I\(I:EEF'%\g NCHES. EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN EXISTING TREE LEGEND PROJECT NAME: PINNACLE MONTESSORI ROCKWALL % O T
RECOMMENDED THAT A LICENSED ARBORIST BE SECUREn 10 IRRIGATION TRENCHING WHICH MUST BE DONE WITHIN THE EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 5A, ROCKWALL BUSINESS PARK EAST =<5
FOR THE TREATMENT OF ANY POSSIBLE TREE WOUNDS. CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF A TREE SHALL BE DUG BY HAND . é
AND ENTER THE AREA IN A RADIAL MANNER. SNOW FENCE, ORANGE VINYL EXISTING TREE CASE NUMBER: P2022-006 :
3. NO DISTURBANCE OF THE SOIL GREATER THAN 4" SHALL BE CONSTRUCTION FENCE, OR TO REMAIN L
LOCATED CLOSER TO THE TREE TRUNK THAN 1/2 THE . ?LL,L_GEFE‘EE?BYT?HEEC?)F\I“%SXCE?O;R\?VIYITHT:EIGSIEE R?EFI;N{/LINEE CHAINLINK FENCE CURRENT OWNER: BUFFALO COUNTRY PROPERTIES LLC,
DISTANCE OF THE DRIP LINE TO THE TREE TRUNK. A TAPE (3" WIDTH) WRAPPED AROUND THE MAIN TRUNK AT A —— ATTN: RAJESH MALVIYA
MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE DRIP LINE AND ROOT ZONE SHALL . METAL T-POST PLACED NO N '
D O  TURAL GHADE HEIGHT OF FOUR (4') FEET ABOVE GRADE. FLAGGING SHALL : / | EXISTING TREE
: BE APPROVED BY OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE R FURTHER THAN 8' APART \ @ ) TO BE REMOVED 12050 RESEARCH ROAD, #9305
PRIOR TO ANY TREE REMOVAL. CONTRACTOR SHALL
4. ANY FINE GRADING DONE WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONES . _ \ FRI X7
OF THE PROTECTED TREES MUST BE DONE WITH LIGHT Sgb’;’écl\;%\ggfgz(':AHUETDHU(I)_FE‘%E,\IDSTTE:F;,?ES;T'\:LéT'VE WITH 72 z EXISTING GRADE TO = SCO, 2033
NG SUCh A X sonCaT ot LT TmacTon o MU OO sarUCoSTe G, o [EETOTECTONFENGNG - [DEVELOPER:  SRCLAND BUILDING AND REAL ESTATE LLC B
WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF THE TREES. " HAVE PROTECTIVE FENCING LOCATED, AT THE TREE'S DRIP I REFER TO 01/L1.01 811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY, SUITE 306
5. NO MATERIALS INTENDED FOR USE IN CONSTRUCTION OR Iéllil\lcE)'vv ZE‘,\EICRTST%CF&XIEGEFE\'/\:EQ\'LGC%Q;Tgﬁci?o“ﬁr?gﬁgm? . . RICHARDSON, TX 75080 TREE
DEMOLITION SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE CHAIN LINK FENCE OR OTHER SIMILAR FENCING WITH A FOUR ° PRESERVATION
DRIP LINE OF ANY TREE (4') FOOT APPROXIMATE HEIGHT. THE PROTECTIVE FENCING -
: SHALL BE LOCATED AS INDICATED ON THE TREE PROTECTION A PLAN
6. NO EQUIPMENT MAY BE CLEANED OR TOXIC SOLUTIONS, OR DETAIL. ‘ LIMITS OF DRIPLINE : 4245 North Central E
OTHER LIQUID CHEMICALS, SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITHIN THE or entral Expy |
LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE OF A TREE, INCLUDING BUT NOT - WHEN A LOW HANGING LIMB_IS BROKEN DURING THE | . o . : SHEET NUMBER
LIMITED TO: PAINT, OIL, SOLVENTS, ASPHALT, CONCRETE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SCALE: 1" = 30'-0 e Suite 501
MORTAR PF.HMERS E’TC ! ! ! ! NOTIFY THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TREE PROTECTIVE FENCING o
’ r E1% IMMEDIATELY. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHALL THE O l: l R M A . Dallas, Texas 75205 L 1 O 1
7. NO SIGNS, WIRES OR OTHER ATTACHMENTS, OTHER THAN Sv?mgﬁgTofHERuysloAé\'Y ngg(')?/'\/LI_OF I;';'E %E"A%EV'VDNTEFS.EE NOT TO SCALE N 0 15 30 60 e 214.865.7192 -
m?(STER(E)EF A PROTECTIVE NATURE, SHALL BE ATTACHED TO AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE. .
ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020

Page 54 of 1128



OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT NUMBER: PMA032

ROCKWALL, TEXAS

PINNACLE MONTESSORI
ACADEMY ROCKWALL

E. RALPH HALL PARKWAY AND PLAZA DRIVE

SHEET TITLE

TREE
PRESERVATION
NOTES

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205 L1.02

214.865.7192

SHEET NUMBER

BELLE
FIRMA

ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020
Page 55 of 1128



OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT NUMBER: PMA032

ROCKWALL, TEXAS

PINNACLE MONTESSORI
ACADEMY ROCKWALL

E. RALPH HALL PARKWAY AND PLAZA DRIVE

SHEET TITLE

TREE
PRESERVATION
NOTES

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205 L1.03

214.865.7192

SHEET NUMBER

BELLE
FIRMA

ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020
Page 56 of 1128



OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT NUMBER: PMA032

ROCKWALL, TEXAS

PINNACLE MONTESSORI
ACADEMY ROCKWALL

E. RALPH HALL PARKWAY AND PLAZA DRIVE

SHEET TITLE

TREE
PRESERVATION
NOTES

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205 L1.04

214.865.7192

SHEET NUMBER

BELLE
FIRMA

ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020
Page 57 of 1128



OMEGA DESIGN, LLC

811 S. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 306
RICHARDSON, TX 75080

TBPE FIRM NO. F-20145

REVISIONS

# | DATE COMMENTS
1 {05.06.20 City Comments
2 [10.13.20 City Comments
3 [11.19.21 City Comments
4 (12.06.21 City Comments
5 103.03.22 City Comments
6 [08.05.22 City Comments
7 105.17.24 City Comments

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

OWNER INFORMATION

O

—

—

» 23

=l

¥§><
|_

O O .

S 3

w3

(«})]

=

o

—

]

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT NUMBER: PMA032

ROCKWALL, TEXAS

PINNACLE MONTESSORI
ACADEMY ROCKWALL

E. RALPH HALL PARKWAY AND PLAZA DRIVE

SHEET TITLE

TREE
PRESERVATION
NOTES

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205 L1.05

214.865.7192

SHEET NUMBER

BELLE
FIRMA

ISSUE DATE: 03-20-2020
Page 58 of 1128



Docusign Envelope ID: 09D6D629-286F-45B5-9B1E-3EA4EBED80F5

August 1, 2024
To,

City of Rockwall,
Planning & Zoning Department

Re: Pinnacle Montessori Academy of Rockwall — Tree Mitigation
960 and 962 E. Ralph Hall Parkway,
Rockwall, TX - 75032

Bethany,

For our tree mitigation fee, we will be going for option 2.

Payment and Quotation:
Pay $34,500 (representing 20% of the mitigation balance).

Obtain and provide a quote for buying 345 canopy trees (each with a 3-inch or more
calliper) and pay the full quoted amount after the P & Z approval.

Regards,
Buffalo Country Properties, LLC

ﬁ;\;\;iym Ny

B3ACASESSFB24F3T

Name — Rajesh Malviya

Date - 8/5/2024

Page 59 of 1128



TREE SOURCE WEST, LLC

PO Box 415

Pilot Point, TX 76258 USA
+12147297610
treesourcewest@gmail.com

Estimate

ADDRESS
RAJ
CITY OF ROCKWALL

DESCRIPTION

CEDAR ELM 3"

THIS IS THE PICKED-UP
PRICE

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SHIP TO

PICK UP

9660 FM 1385

PILOT POINT, TX. 76258

QTY RATE

345 225.00

SUBTOTAL
TAX

TOTAL

Page 1 of 1

ESTIMATE 1021
DATE 08/02/2024

AMOUNT

77,625.00T

77,625.00

4,851.56

$82,476.56

Page 60 of 1128



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

Cc: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: David Sweet, Director of Administrative Services
DATE: August 16, 2024

SUBJECT: Interlocal Cooperation Agreement w/ Rockwall County

In 2021 when Rockwall County held its Road Bond election, included was a sum for the
advance planning on the North and South Goliad widenings. They have decided to release $2
million to the City of Rockwall in order to begin advance planning on this future widening. This
comes nowhere close to the amount needed for design or construction, which is currently
estimated at $85 million (just for North Goliad alone). However, this money will allow us to do
the early stages of advance planning.

The County road consultant, John Polster, calls it “reimagining” North Goliad as it turns from a
state highway into a city thoroughfare. This planning effort will include visioning workshops and
other tools to get input from affected residents along the route. The City of Ennis recently
undertook this effort and is now in the process of doing a major change to their downtown.

John Polster will be the one to assist in the coming years with finding a way to get COG or
TxDOT money for the widening. The plan has always been that it doesn’t become a city street
until the road is widened to our vision for it. While it remains to be seen, this will be the very
first step in that effort. We will have to do a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to proceed and
will likely use the Ennis document as an example for that.

Rockwall City Council has to first approve execution of this Interlocal Agreement with the

County, then go to RFQ. Once RFQs are received and a selection is made, staff will come to
Council for approval of that consulting agreement before this project will actually get kicked off.

Page 61 of 1128



THE STATE OF TEXAS

wn W

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL 8

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

THIS AGREEMENT is made, entered into and executed by and between Rockwall
County, Texas (“the County”), a duly organized political subdivision of the State of Texas; and
the City of Rockwall, Texas (“the City”), a duly organized political subdivision of the State of
Texas. The County and the City are collectively referred to herein as “the Parties.”

WHEREAS, the County and the City mutually desire to enter into this Agreement to
provide engineering for SH 205 as a 4-lane urban divided/undivided roadway between North John
King Boulevard and Downtown Rockwall, located entirely in the municipal limits of the City and
Rockwall County Commissioner Precinct #1, hereinafter “the Project”; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of completion for the Project is EIGHTY-FIVE MILLION
TWO HUNDRED ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($85,201,700.00), with the County agreeing to contribute an initial amount which shall not exceed
TWO MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00), based on current available funding,
and

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 791,
hereinafter “the Act,” provides authorization for a local government to contract with one or more
local governments to perform governmental functions and services under the terms of the Act, and
the County and the City hereby mutually agree to be subject to the provisions of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the mutual benefit of the County and the City and the residents of the City
and the County, the Parties understand the value of the timely completion of the Project which
involves roads which are an integral part of the County’s road system, and the Parties are
undertaking the Project to facilitate safe travel on an improved roadway; and

NOW, THEREFORE, this Agreement is hereby made and entered into by the County and
the City upon and for the mutual consideration stated herein:

Page 1 of 7
ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 62 of 1128



WITNESSETH:
.
Pursuant to Texas Government Code §791.011, the County and the City hereby enter into

this Agreement in order to perform certain governmental functions and services in the area of
streets, roads, and drainage. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a governmental function
or service that each party is authorized to perform individually.

1.

The County and the City hereby agree that the scope of the Project shall be to provide
engineering for SH 205 as a four (4)-lane urban divided/undivided roadway between North John
King Boulevard and Downtown Rockwall (“Project”), at an estimated cost of EIGHTY-FIVE
MILLION TWO HUNDRED ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED AND NO/100
DOLLARS ($85,201,700.00), with the County agreeing to contribute an initial amount which
shall not exceed TWO MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00), based on current
available funding,. The Project is located entirely within the municipal limits of the City and
Rockwall County Commissioner Precinct #1.

1.

The County hereby agrees to contribute for the engineering of the Project for an amount
which shall not exceed TWO MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00), provided
that any and all funding is approved by formal action of the Rockwall County Commissioners
Court.

V.

The City agrees to manage all engineering of the Project. The City shall timely provide the
County with all invoices and requested documentation for the engineering of the Project in an
amount which shall not exceed TWO MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00).

V.

This exchange of services between the County and the City is deemed adequate

consideration for the obligations exchanged by the Parties herein.
VI.

As the City proceeds with the completion of the engineering for the Project, the City shall
submit all invoices for reimbursement to the Rockwall County Auditor, Ms. Lisa Constant-Wylie,
1111 E. Yellowjacket Lane, Suite 202, Rockwall, Texas 75087, c/o Mr. John Polster, Innovative

Page 2 of 7
ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 63 of 1128



Transportation Solutions, Inc., 2701 Valley View Lane, Farmers Branch, Texas 75234. The City shall

submit the engineering invoices on a monthly basis, and the County shall reimburse the City on a pro

rata basis for all approved expenses related to the engineering of the Project within thirty (30) calendar

days of receipt of an invoice from the City, provided that all expenditures are made in a manner which

is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Upon satisfactory completion of the Project, the City

shall prepare and complete a full audit of the Project and provide a copy of such audit to the County.
VII.

As required by Texas Transportation Code §251.012 and as evidenced by the signature of the
City’s representative below, the governing body of the City by the execution of and approval of this
Agreement hereby approves of the expenditure of County money to finance the engineering for the
construction, improvement or repair of a street or alley in the County that is located in the City (SH
205).

VIIL.

This Agreement may be terminated in whole, or in part, by the County or the City upon
thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. In the event of termination by the County, the
County shall pay all approved invoices submitted by the City up to and including the date of
termination.

IX.

This Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement between the County and the
City and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, either oral or written.
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both of the Parties. Notices
shall be directed as follows:

For City: Honorable Trace Johannesen, Mayor
City of Rockwall, Texas
385 South Goliad
Rockwall, Texas 75087

Copy To: Kristy Teague, City Secretary
City of Rockwall, Texas
385 South Goliad
Rockwall, Texas 75087

For County: Honorable Frank New, Rockwall County Judge
101 E. Rusk
Suite 202

Page 3 of 7
ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 64 of 1128



Rockwall, Texas 75087

Copy To: Lisa Constant-Wylie, Rockwall County Auditor
1111 E. Yellowjacket Lane
Suite 202
Rockwall, Texas 75087

X.

The covenants, terms, and conditions herein are to be construed under the laws of the State
of Texas and are performable by the Parties in Rockwall County, Texas. The Parties mutually
agree that venue for any obligation arising from this Agreement shall be in Rockwall County,
Texas.

XI.

The City agrees and understands that the City, its employees, servants, agents or
representatives shall at no time represent themselves to be employees, servants, agents or
representatives of the County. The County agrees and understands that the County, its employees,
servants, agents or representatives shall at no time represent themselves to be employees, servants,

agents or representatives of the City.

XII.

The City agrees to accept full responsibility for the acts, negligence and omissions of all
City employees, agents, subcontractors or contract laborers and for all other persons doing work
under a contract or agreement with the City.

X1,

This Agreement is not intended to extend the liability of the Parties beyond that provided
for by law. Neither the County nor the City waive, nor shall be deemed to have hereby waived,
any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to it against claims made by third
parties.

XIV.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, this Agreement is a contract for and
with respect to the performance of governmental functions by governmental entities. The
relationship of the Parties shall, with respect to that part of any service or function undertaken as
a result of or pursuant to this Agreement, be that of independent contractors. Nothing contained

Page 4 of 7

ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 65 of 1128



herein shall be deemed or construed by the Parties, or by any third party, as creating the

relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers, or any other similar such relationship.

XV.

In the event that any portion of this Agreement shall be found to be contrary to law, it is
the intent of the Parties hereto that the remaining portions shall remain valid and in full force and
effect to the fullest extent possible.

XVI.

Each party shall promptly advise the other party in writing of any claim or demand against
either Party or known to it related to or arising out of actions or omissions under this Agreement
and shall see to the investigation of and defense of such claim or demand at its expense. The other
party shall have the right, at its option and at its own expense, to participate in such defense without

relieving the advising party of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

XVII.

This Agreement merges any and all prior negotiations and understandings of the Parties
and embodies the entire agreement of the Parties, and there are no other agreements, assurances,
conditions, covenants (express or implied) or other terms with respect to the covenants, whether
written or verbal, antecedent or contemporaneous, with the execution hereof. This Agreement may

be amended only by written instrument duly executed on behalf of each Party.

XVIII.
The undersigned officers and agents of the Parties hereto are the properly authorized
officials and have the necessary authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Parties hereto,
and each party hereby certifies to the other that any necessary resolutions extending said authority

have been duly passed and are now in full force and effect.

XIX.
This Agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the
respective agreement fully executed, and the term of this Agreement is for the life of the Project

beginning on the date of execution of this Agreement and continuing until the Project is completed.

Page 5 of 7
ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 66 of 1128



Executed this day of

, 2024.

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS
101 E. Rusk, Suite 202
Rockwall, Texas 75087

By:
Honorable Frank New

Rockwall County Judge

Acting by and on behalf of the authority

of the Rockwall County Commissioners Court

ATTEST:

By:

Rockwall County Clerk

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

385 South Goliad
Rockwall, Texas 75087

By:
Mary Smith

City Manager, City of Rockwall, TX
Acting by and on behalf of the authority
of the City of Rockwall, Texas

ATTEST:

By:
Kristy Teague, City Secretary

COUNTY AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify funds are available to accomplish and pay the obligation of Rockwall

County, Texas, under this Agreement.

Lisa Constant-Wylie
Rockwall County Auditor

ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 6 of 7

Page 67 of 1128



APPROVAL OF INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

Rockwall County, Texas, acting by and through the Rockwall County Commissioners
Court, hereby gives its specific written approval to the following Project, prior to beginning of the
Project in satisfaction of Texas Government Code 8791.014. The scope of the Project shall be to
provide SH 205 as a 4-lane urban divided/undivided roadway between North John King Boulevard
and Downtown Rockwall, at an estimated cost of completion of EIGHTY-FIVE MILLION TWO
HUNDRED ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($85,201,700.00). The Project shall be located entirely within the municipal limits of the City of
Rockwall and Rockwall County Commissioner Precinct #1.

The County hereby agrees to contribute an initial amount which shall not exceed TWO
MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00), provided that any and all funding is
approved by formal action of the Rockwall County Commissioners Court.

The local governments which requested the Project and with whom the Agreement is by
and between are Rockwall County, Texas, and the City of Rockwall, Texas.

By vote on the date below, the Rockwall County Commissioners Court has approved the
project identified above and authorized execution of this document by the presiding officer of the

Rockwall County Commissioners Court.

Date:

By:

Presiding Officer of the Rockwall
County Commissioners Court

Page 7 of 7
ICA, City of Rockwall — SH 205
8598/5 DM#302170

Page 68 of 1128



CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

385 S. GOLIAD STREET « ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 « EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

TO: Mayor and City Council

DATE: August 19, 2024

APPLICANT: Paul and Dioselina Curbow

CASE NUMBER: Z2024-031; Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Residential Infill at 510 W. Kaufman Street
SUMMARY

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Paul and Dioselina Curbow for the approval of a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision on a 0.2753-acre tract of land identified as a portion
of Block 20 of the Lowe & Allen Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District,
addressed as 510 W. Kaufman Street, and take any action necessary.

BACKGROUND

According to the 1934 Sanborn Maps, the subject property was platted as part of the Lowe & Allen Addition prior to 1934 and
after 1911. Per the City’s historic zoning maps, the subject property was originally zoned Single-Family 2 (SF-2) District as of
January 3, 1972. Between this date and May 16, 1983, the subject property was rezoned from a Single-Family 2 (SF-2)
District to a Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District. The subject property is currently vacant.

PURPOSE
The applicants -- Paul and Dioselina Curbow -- are requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for the purpose of

constructing a single-family home on the subject property in accordance with Subsection 02.03(B)(11), Residential Infill in or
Adjacent to an Established Subdivision, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS

The subject property is addressed as 510 W. Kaufman Street. The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows:

North:  Directly north of the subject property are several single-family homes that are situated within the Highwood
Subdivision, which consists of 74 residential lots and was established on July 1, 1955. Beyond this is Westway
Drive, which is identified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the City's Master
Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. North of this roadway, are
more single-family homes situated within the Highwood Subdivision. Beyond this is Highland Drive, which is
identified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the City’'s Master Thoroughfare Plan
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. All of these properties are zoned Single-
Family 10 (SF-10) District.

South:  Directly south of the subject property is W. Kaufman Street, which is identified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2]
lane, undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040
Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this is a 1.46-acre parcel of land (i.e. Block 19 of the Lowe & Allen Addition) that is
developed with a single-family home and is zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District. South of this is W. Rusk Street,
which is identified as a P3U (i.e. principal arterial, three (3) lane, undivided roadway) on the City's Master
Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan.

East: Directly east of the subject property are nine (9) residential lots (i.e. 30